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Ardonagh Services Limited

Strategic Report for the Year Ended 31 December 2019

The directors présent their Strategic Réport for the 'year ended 31 December 2019 for Ardonagh Services Limited
("the Company” or "ASL").. The Strategic Report provides a review of the business for the financial -year and
describes how the directors manage risks. The report outlines the' developmg.nts and pérformance of the Company
during the findncial yedr, the position at the ¢nd of the year and discusses the main trends and factors that could
affect the future. The Company is part-of The Ardondgh Group Liinited (“the Group®).

Principal activitiés and business review

The principal -activity of the Company is that of a non-trading holding company. The Compary incurs: costs on
behalf of the Group and its subsidiary companies and makes recharges to these companies.

The results for the Compahy shaw a loss before tax of £42.4m (2018: £167.3m) for the year and turnover of £28.1m
(2018: £49.9m).. At 31 December 2019 the Company had fet curreniagsets of £462.7m (2018: £506.1m) and net:
assets of £602.2m (2018: £625.4m),

On 12 April 2019 the Company changed its name from Towergate Insurance Limited to Ardoriagh Services Limited.

Section 172 Duty

The Directors take seriously their obligations under s.172.(1) ()-(f) of the Comipanies Act 2006 (“S.172 Duties™) to
act in-a way they consider, in good faith, would be the most likely 1o promote the success of the Company for the
benefit of its members as a whole and in doing so; have regard 10; the likely consequences of any decision in the
long-term, the intérests of the Company's employees; the need. to foster the company’s business relationships with
suppliers, customers. and others, the impact of the Company’s operations on the community and the environmént, the
desirability of the Company mamtammg a reputation for high standards of business conduct and the need to act
fairly as between members of the Company.

The Bdard of The Ardohagh Group Limited (“Group Board”) have voluntarily adoptéd the Wates Corporate
Governance Prmcxpks for Large Private Companies and an explanation of how ihe Group -applies the Wates
Prmcnplt.s are séf out in the consolidated Group Annual Report.

‘The Board considers the long-term consequences of its decisions and these are guided by a S-year business plan in
respect to the Ardonagh Portfolio Services business; (:roup risk appetite and Group risk framework, which secks:to
ensure that the business plan is exectted with due régard {o our stakeholders and maintaining our high standards of
biiiness' conduct. The Board have identified the following as our Key stakeholders and how the Board engages with
each stakeholder is'set out below; émployees;.the Financial Conduct Authority (\ FCA™), insurers and Supplicrs.
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Ardonagh Services Limited

Strategic Report for the Year Ended 31 December 2019 {continued)

Employees

The Board recognises that our talented employees are our biggest asset and our remuneration structures -are-designed
to reward good performance at the individual and business level and support oui-cultare. 16 addition, our busincsscs
fociis on providing cxcellent working conditions and prowdmg a longsterim carcer for staff ‘with opportunities to
’«up-skﬂl through training and study support. Our culture is further supponed by our Ardonagh values that are set out
in our code of conduct that is also subject to all-§taff mandatory training.

As a Board we believe in the importance of communication and engagement with our employeés. Our Businesses all
undertake regular comimunication and other engagement activities, T ‘he first Group-vnde employee pulse Survey was
undertaken in Q4 2009 which achieved an excellent 73% résponse rate from over 6,000 employees across the
Group. The results have heen promising with an overall positivity score of 69.44%. In January- 2020 we consideréd.
the pulsé survey scores across the businesses and the actions to be taken s a result of the survey. Managemem have
identified the following enght priorities to drive 'positive emplojeé expériences across the Group and in turn, ensure
the successful delivery of business strategy, strategic priorities and great client outcomes:

* Attract-gnd retain-the best people by providing a high-performing, collaborative and flexible working environment,
where people. feel engagud with the Group and valued for their contribution
» Recruit people using fair and professional selection methods
* Provide a good onboarding experience and ongoing career support'to give people the best passible start-and return
to work followmg perinds of extended léave
* Develop. the personal and professional skills and knowledge of-ali employees throughout their carecrs, helping
them achieve their full potential within the Group
* Recognise achievements at all fevels and provide opportunities for all our people to progress their career
* Rewdrd people fairly within transparent and appropnatc remuncration frameworks; remaining compétitive and
.allowing for changing external factors
* Build a supportive culture which is inclusive, positive and fair; whete opportunitiés are apen to all, people can lead
and are led effectively, and change is well managed
* Provide an environment, where: health, wellbeing and the importance of community are actively promoted, where
people can bring their whole self to work.

The survey has highlighted a number. of areas that evidence a strong-baseline culture and an indication of the calibre
of our people, which is mcreasmgly becoming recognised by the industry, with Ardonagh bemg voted “Best of the
Best Broker” by 3,000 leading insurance professionals ‘at the British Insurdnce Awards in July 2019. Over. 300
employees attended our 2019 annual employee "Spoihgh( award event in March 2019 that celchrates and rewards,
excellent individual and team performanices in délivering excellent service to our-clients.

Customers

Seeking good Customer outcomes is central to the success of thé business. Put simply, it’s what we always seck to
achieve. The Board kceps track ofhow our customers perceive our products and services and ¢xercisés oversight to
ensure Mahagement review.products and services 1o ensure théy continue to meet the needs of our customers,
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Ardonagh Services Limited

Strategic Report for the Year Ended 31 December 2019 (continued)

Regulatory relationships
The FCA are a key: stakcholder and the Board prioritise- posmve open and transparent engagement wiih the FCA.

Ansurers

Our insurance partners are fundamental to the success of the business. The Business regularly meets with our ke)
insurance parthers to discuss performance: and ways' in which we can enhanice cover for customers. T ‘he Ardonagh
Portfolio Solutions business established in 2019 and will support dur husinesses to foster decper-and more long-term
relationships across a more focusséd number of insurers that will enable-us to offer enhanced products and services
10 our customers.

Our Suppliers

Our key suppliers are. defined by the. Group Ou‘soun,mg and Procurément Policy which ensures that all key
suppliers are identified -and are subjéct 10-appropridte monitoring ‘and engagemem — the lével of which.i§ dependem
on the size and critical nature of the.services supplied to the Graup. We als have minimumn due- diligence standards
to be -performed on Suppliers before being engaged, which includes a requirement that suppliers have CSR. and
modern slavery policies that are at least as-st'ringent as our own.

Commitinity and sustainability

The Group s UK -registered charity, Ardonagh Community Trust (ACT) celebratéd two years iii October 2019 and
jts activities that hamessés theé collective power of The Ardonagh Group to heip local communities become stronger,
better and brighter are set out in the Group Consolidated accounts.

The Board has also considered environmental impact of its operations. Qur commitinent to minimising the impact of
our activities on the environment is evidenced thraugh:

« minimising wasic by cvaluating opcrations and c¢nsuring they are as cﬂ‘uum agpossibler’

« actively prommmg the importance of' recvclmg both internally, where possiblc, and:amongsi our supphcrs,

. encouragmg alternative ways of travélfing to work, e:g. car Sharing, cycle to work; (o reduce carboh émissions;
» using miotion sensifive lighting in offices, where possible, to reduce wasted energy;

» apply technological developments to reduce staff travel thereby reducing emissions:

Outlook

The-directors.do.not expect there to be any further changes in the nature of the business in 2020,

The unprécedented and rapldly evolving nature of the global COVID-19 pandemic (including the short-term and
long«term effects thereof) creates unprecedented and extraordinary uncertainties for. most businesses including; th¢

Ardonagh group and the Company. Consideration. of the financial risk and future impact cas. be found in' the
Strategi¢ Report within the‘Risk- Mmanagement’ section on page 5 and the 'Going concem’ disclosure in:note 2.
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Ardonagh Services Limited.
Strategic Report for the Year Ended 31 December 2019 (continued)

Key performance indicators
The directors of the Giroip manige the Group's oper.mons on 4 divisional basis, For this feason, the Company's
dircctdrs befieve that a separate analysis for the: Company is not necessary orappropriatc foran undorsmndmg of the
dcvclopmum performancé or position of the business. The; develdpment, performance and position: of the Group is

discusséd in the Group's dnnual report.

A key performance indicator for this company is the cariying value of its investment§ in subsidiaries. The
’perfommnce of the subsidiary undertakings will determine -whether an impairmentto the carrying value i§ réquired

and: this is tested on a régiildr basis.

There were no impairmént charges for the ¢urrent year-end.

During; the year, the Company recognised 4 gain of £0.7m on. its disposal of investrent in Bravo- Investment
lloldmgs Limited "Bravo" as.discussed in note 14.

Non-financial key performance. indicators include staffing levéls which havc, reduced by 38% (2018: 11%) dunng
the year; mainly die to the Business Transformation Projéct primarily targeting reduction in headgount:

[Principal risks and uncertainties.

Risk management .

Thé Company’s performance and value, as a holding company of the. Group, is integrated with: its: invéstment in the
-Company’s subsidiaries. As such the:prificipal risks &nd uncertainties. are. mtegratcd with the prmcnpal risks of the
Group and are managed Separately: Accordmgly, the prmupal risks and uncértaintics are discussed.in the Group's
-annual reporl

A principal risk of this holding company is the trading pertormance of iis-subsidiaries. Trading. performance i in the
subsidiaries could create the need. for impairment leadmg to a reduction in nAet assets. The -subsidiaries: sel
performance targets for the year ahead and performance, is reviewed mgulnrly agamst these- targets. Reasons for
under performance are monitored and mtugatmg actions are taken, Investments are. reviewdd for - impairment: to
ensure the.appropriate cairying-value for.each investment in the holding ¢ompany’s financial:statements.
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Ardonagh Services Limited

Striitegic Report for the Year Ended 31 December 2019 (continued)

Principal risks and uncértainties (continued)
The principal risks-and their 'mitigation are s follows:

Financial risk

Theré is the risk of adverse impact on biisinéss value or earning capacity as well as risk of inadequate- cash flow to
meet financial obligations, This risk is mitigated by proactive management of th¢ Company and its subsidiaries’
business plan, regulat monitoring of cash flows against risk-appetite and a focus oft debt collection by the Company
and its subsidiaries.

‘The Company and’ Group ‘have considered: the canséquences -and ramifications of the Covid-19 pandemic. Business
Continuity Plans arein place actoss each of the Group's operitifig segments, v with measures to manage' employee:
absences, access to the wider network of all offices, the efficiency and stability of the Group’s infrastructure and the
-ability for home working for: & significant portion of our employce base. {.eadership teams and working groups led
by 'senior managers are-in place to support opcranonal resilicnce and taking common-§énse prccauuons with & view
10 ensuring the wellbeing of colicagues: We continue. to review this approach on a daily basis.in line with latest
global developments énd government guidance. Insurance broking is a resilient and defensive. market, which has,
historicaliy had limited impact from paat cconomic or capital market downturns, Ardonagh is highly diversified and
not materially exposed to a single carrier, customer or market sector,

The Group has sufficient liquidity € withsiand a period of potential poor trading resulting from a sustained impact:
of Covid-19 and closely monitors available liq.ui'di,t')i on an ongoing basis.

Operational risk ‘
‘There is the risk of losses arising. from inadequate ‘or failed internal prou,sws or systems, from personnel and/or
from external evenis. These risks-are mitigated by having an E;meq:nse Risk Managcmem Framework in place,
which is 6wned by the Group Risk Officer. The framework requires ali risks to have ownets, and these owners have
appropriate’ controls in place which. are régularly. monitored, and signifi¢ant changés to a risk are escalated as
required.

The Company's busingss depcnd> on the ability of employees 1o procéss transactions using secure information
systems. The capacily to service customers depends on sioring, fetrieving, processing and managing mformauon
Interruption or loss of information processing capabilities through loss. of stored data, the failure 6f:computer
cquipmerit or Software: systems, a telecommunications failure or other disruption, could have a matérial adverse
cffect on business, results of operations and financial condition. To mitigate these risks the Company has. certain
disaster recovery proceduresin place and has insurance to protect againist such contingencics.

Strategic and commércial visk

There are risks of ¢hanges to the competitive and economic environmerit. This is mitigated hy :a robust strategy and
plaining process, regular monitaring of the économic and competitive environment and. by diversification of product
lines and channels. ' '

Regwlatory and legal risk

This is the risk of regulatory sanctions, materisl financial Joss or loss. 10 reputauon sufféred as a result of
non-compham,e with laws, regulations and applicable administrative provisions, This risk is mitigated by a
proactive relationship with the Financial Condu«.t Authorify ("FCA"), a dedicated compliance function, and a
¢ompliance .monitoring programme. Furthermore, thére is a control framework that has been. rofled out and
embedded within the culture throughout the Company to reduce the risk of eriots and non-compliance.
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Ardonagh Services Limited’
Strategic Repart for the Year Ended 31 December 2019 (continued)

Prineipal risks and unceértaintiés (continved)

General Data Protection Regulunon .
The Lomp.my s compuier systems store mtormanon about our ¢ustomers, some of which is sensuwe personal dafg.

Databaa. privacy, identity. lheﬁ and related computer and ‘internet issues are matters of growing public concern and-

are subject to changes in. rules and regulations. Our failure o adhiere- 10, or successfully implenient processes in
1esponsé 10 bhangmg regulatory requiremients .in this area could result in legal liability of harm to our reputation.
Although the Company *hiis taken reasonable and -appropriate securify measures 1o prevent unauthorised access to
information stored in our database and 1o ¢nsuré that our processing of pérsonal daia complies with the relevant data
protection regulauons our technology’ may fail to adequately secure the private information:the Company maintain
‘in its.databases-and protect it from theft or inadvertent Joss.

Future impact of Brexit

“TH¢ Brexit decision may aflect the ability. of ‘businesses lo. passport frém the UK into other EtJ:states'and likewise:

into the UK from the EU. Following the 2019 general election, the Prime Minister. Fias bech clear that he-is.driveri 10
deliver-Brexit with a transition period cnding on 31st December 2020.

We continue to. believe. that the-direct impact on the:Company .and its subsidiaries will not be significant because it

conducts only limited business within the EU and, importantly, because several addifional mitigation strategies have
been put in place duung 2019 (i.e. gaining direct authorisation in centain EU member states) 10 reduce (he risk .
However. the loss of passporting rights may affect the insurdricé matkets i which the Company and its subsidiaries
operaié; possibly reducing insurance capagity, conipetition and choice: ’

Brexit could also lead 10 a general decline in economic conditions in the UK wheré the Gmup operatés

predominantly. The diversified business ponfnho of the Company and its gubsidiaries continues to mitigate the risk
-of a genera! decline in ¢conomic c(mdmons

Agggovm by thie Board on 24-April 2020.and signed on its behalf by:

W7o

D Cougill
Director
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Ardonagh Services Limited.

Directors' Report for the Year Ended 31 December 2019

“The directofs present:their annudl report arid the audited financial-statements for the year ended 34 December 2019.
Directors of the Company _

The diréctors'who held officé during the year and up io the-date of signing; were as follows:

D € Ross

D-Cougill

P N Butler.(resigned 1 April. 2019Y

‘G E Dandridge (resigried 1 April 2019)

V. A Doinbalagian.(resighed | April:2019)

S Frenich (resigned i April 2019)

F Mackle (resigned 1 April: 2019)

J I'Tiner(resigned 1. April 2019)

C Bouch (fesigned 1 April 2019)

MY A Boulanger {resigned 1 April 2019)

A Cusaro (resigned 1. Apri) 2019)

M W Raino (resigned 1 April 2019)

'Ful‘\gre, devélopments

Details of futuré develapments ¢an Be found in the: Steategic:Report within the *Outldok® section on page 4..

Financial risk manageshent objectives and policies ) .
Dezails of financial risk management objectives and policies can be found in the. Strategic Report within the ‘Risk
management’ section on page 5.

Dividends .
The directors do fot récomménd a final dividend payniént to be made in respect of ‘the fingncial year ended'31
December 2019 (2018: £Nil).

Political donations .
The Company has not made. any political donations during the year (2018: £Nil).



Ardonagh Services Limited

Directors" Report for the Year Ended 31 Deceinber 2019 (continued)

Employee involvement

Employees are key to the Company’s siccess, 50.an appropriate remuneration package is offered which réwards an
individual’s péfformance dnd contribition to the organisation. The Company: is also keen to eficourage individual’s
personal -development to ensure. that they have the skills required 10 undertake their role, The Company places
gonsiderable: value-on ihe involvement of'its employegs and continugs fo keép-them informed on matters. atTecung‘
them as-cmployees and on the various factors affecting the. performance of the' Company and the Group as a whole.

This is achieved by formal and informal meetings, circalation of the Compary Wweekly cominunications email and
Group news posted o the iriternal website,

‘Employment of disabled persons :

The Company’s policy is to recruit disabled workers for 1how vacancies that they have the appropriate-skills and
technical ability to perform, Once émployed, a carcer p]an is developed 10 .ensure fhat suitable opportunities exist fof.
cach disabled person., Employces. who become disabled during, their \wrk;ng life will be retrained if nécessary dnd.
whérevér possible will be given help, with any nécéssary rehabilitation and training, The Company is prepared 10
modxfy procedures or equipment, wherever practicable, so that full use can be fhade of an-individual’s abilities.

‘Directors” liabilities

‘Al directors: 67 the- tompany, and fellow Group companies, benefit. from qualifying third party: indemnity
“provisians, subject to the conditions:set out in the Companies-Act 2006, in place dufing the financial 'yéar and at the
date of this report.

Going concern

The Company’s. business activities, together with the fagtors likély to aﬁau its future development aré-described in
the: Strategic Report- on page 2. ‘The. dircctors have. a reasonable expectation that the Company has adequate
resources to continue in opcranonal ‘exisience for at least the next twelve months from the date of approval of the
financial statements. 'lhucfore they continue to adopt the going concern hasis of accounting in preparing: the annual
financial statements. Further details of this dssessment can be found innote 2 to these finaricial Statéments.

Disclosure of information to the auditor

Each directar has taken steps that'thiey ought to have taken as a diréelof in order to make themselves aware of‘any
relevant audit information and o _establish that the Company's auditor is awdre of that informaiion. The¢ divectors
confirm that there is no refevant ir grmation that they know of and of which they know the auditor is unaware.

Reappointmént of auditor
The auditor, Déloitte L.LP, i$ deemed 1o be reappointed under section 487 (2) of the Companies Act 2006.

-A‘pp‘r‘oved by the Board on 24 April 2020-and signed on its behalf by:.

‘./

(/’"’M ‘
- D Lou_gxll
Director.
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Ardonagh Services Limited
Directors’ responsibilities statement

The ‘directors ‘are. responsiblé. 1ox, prepariiig the Annual Report and “the financial statemients in -accordance with
applicatile law and reguldtions.

Company law requires: the- diréctors 10: prepare_ finas

Disclosure Framewosk'.

Undeér company law the directors must not approve the. financia statements unies$ they are satisfied that they givéa

true and fair view of the state of ‘affairs of thé Company and of the. .profit or loss of the Company for that yedr. in
preparing these financial statemeénts; the.directors are rcqm_:;ed to:

+ seléct'suitable accounting policies.and dpply them consistently;

+ make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and pruderit;

¢ state. whether FRS 101 has. been followed, subject to any maicfial departurés disclosed and expldingd. in the
financial statements; and

* -prepare the: financinl statements on the oing concern basis unfess it is inappropriate, to- presume that the
Company will, continue in bumm.s,s

‘The directors are:responsible: for kupmg :adequate -accounting records that ‘are sufficiet to show .and expldin the
-Company's trangdctions and to dxsclose with reasonable accuracy - at. -any lime the fmanual position of the Companv
and 10 ¢énable them fo ensure thit the financial statements _comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are also
rCSponsxbic_ for saféguarding the assets of the Corfpany and hehée for taking rcasondble steps for the prevention and,
deteition of friud and other irregularitics, )
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Accountifig Practice (United Kingdom Au:ountmg Standards. and apphcable faw), iincliding FRS 161 Reduced.



Ardonagh Services Limited.
Independent Auditor's Report to the Members of Ardonagh Services Limited

‘Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion » A

In gur opinion the financial staterents of Ardonagh Services Limitéd (ihe 'Company'):

+  give a true and fair view of the state of the Company's uffairs as at 31 December 2019.and pf: its joss for the year
then.ended:

* have been properly prepared in accordance with. United Kingdom. Genérally Accepted Accounting Practice,
including Financial Reporting Standard 101 'Reduced Disclosure Framework'; and

« have been preparéd in accordance with the requireménts: of the Companies At 2006.

We have audited the financial statemeénts, which comprise:

+ the Staiemient of Comprehensive Income;
»'the Statement of Financial Position;

-« the Statement of Changés in.Equity;.and
« the related notes 1 10 24

The financial feporting framework that has been' applied in their preparation is applicabic law: and United Kij_\gdom
Accounting Standards, including Financial Reporting Standard 101 “Reducced Disclosure Framework” (United
Kingdom Generally Agcepted Accounting Practice).

Basis for opinion

We conducted our :audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (SAs (UK)) and applicable
taiv. Our responsibilities .under those standards are further described inthe auditor's responsibilities for the audit of
the financial statements section of our report

We are independent of the Company in accordance with the éthical requirements: that are rélevdnt to our audit of thé
financial statements in the UK, includirig the Financial Reporting Couneil’s (the ‘FRC’s™) Ethical Standard, and we
have: fullilled our other ethical responsibilities. in accordangéé: with these requirements. We believé that the audit
evidence we havé oblained is sufficient.and appropridte to provide.a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to-going concern )

We are requircd by [SAs (UK) 10 repoit in respéct of the following matters whére:

«  the directors use of the going concerni basis of accounting in the preparation of theé financial staiements is not
appropriate; or

< the dircgtqr,s have not disclosed in the financial statements any idc:p_liﬁed material. uncertaintics thdt may cast
significant doubt about the company's ability to continue 1o adopt the going congem basis 6f accounting: for a
period of at least twélve months from the date when the financial statements afe athorised for issue.

We have nothing to feport-in respect of these matters.

‘Other information

The directors:are responsible for the. othier information. . The other information comprises the information included
in the annual report, other than. the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. Our opinion on the
financial statements does not cover the-other informaticn.and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our
reporl, wé do nol expressany form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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Ardonagh Services Limited
Independent Auditor's Report to the Members of Ardonagh Sérvices Limited (continued)

{in connection with. ouf audit’of the financial statements, our résponsibility is to read the othet information-and, in
doing _so, consider wheéther the other information is’ matenally inconsistent with the financial statemenis or 6ur
knowledge ‘obtained in the audit or othérwise appears ta bt maferially misstated. If we identify Such material
inconsistencies or apparent material misstateménts, we are reguired to determine whether there is a matgrial
misstatement in the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information. 1f, based .on the ‘work.
we have, performed,. we caficlude that there is a material misStawémeént of this other information, we are ruqunrgd to
-report that fact:

"We have nothing to report in this regard.
Responsibilities of directors

As explained more-fully in.the directors’ responsibilitics Statement, the directors are.responsible for the preparation
of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a.true and fair view, and for such internal control as
the: diréctors determine is necessary -io enable the preparauon of financial statements' that are free from material
misstatement, whethierdue 10 fraud or error.

Tn. prcparmg the financial statenients, the directors are r'c's‘p(msiblc for ass’essing the Com;‘:any s ability to continue as’
a going concern, dlsclosmg, as applicable; matters rélated to going concein and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors cither intend to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative bt to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities-for the audit of the financial statements

Qur objectives are (6 obtain reasonable assurance about- whether the financial statements as a.whole are frec: from
material misstatement, whethér due to fraud or error, and.to issug un auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurdnce is-a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audif conducted in accordance with
ISAs (UK) will always detect a material ‘misstatement. when it exists, Misstatermerits can arise from fraud of error
and are considercd maierial if; individually or in the agpregaté, they could reasonably be expécted to influence the
econoinic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial staieménts.

A furthier description of our responsibilitics for the audit of ‘thee financial stateménts is Jocatcd on the FRC's website
at: www.frc.arg. uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor’s report.

Report on other légal and regulatory requirements

Opinion on other matter prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

1n our opinion, bascd on.the work undertaken ini the course of the audit:

* the information given in the Strategic Report. and the Directors' Report for the financial year for which the
financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and

« fifie Strategic Report and the Dircgtors' Regort have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal.
-require_memsh

in the light of the knowledge -and understanding of the company and it$ environment obtained in the course of the
-audit, we-havee nat identified any material misstatements in‘the Strategic Report-and the Directors' Report:
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Ardonagh Sérvices Limited
Indépendent Auditor's Report to the Mémbers of Ardonagh Services Limited (continued)

‘Matters on which we.are requlred to repoit by excéptio-
Under the Lompames Act 2006 we are reqmred 19 réport in respect of the following matiers if; in our opinion;

+ adequate accountifig records’ have. not-been kept, or returns adéquate for our audit have not bu,n recéived from
branthes not visited by: us; or

«  ihé findncial statémeits.are not in agreément with the-accounting records and fefurhs; of
+  certain disclosures of directors remuneration spegified by Jaw are not made; or

« we havé not received.all the informaiion and explanations we require for.our.audit.

We have nothing i téport ifrrespect of.these matters.

Use of our report

This report is made §olely-to the Company’s members, ‘as 4 body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Compinies Act 2006. Our audit work has been.undertaken so that we iight Staté 1o the Company! s members those
‘matters: we are required o state to thém in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose, Ta the fullest extent
-permitted. by law; we do not accept or assune r¢sponsibility to anyone other thun the. Company and the Company’s
‘members as a hody, for ourandii'work, for this feport, or for, the opinions we have formed..

( ,\_‘Q«,Kwﬂ‘t’.@

LR GRETR g&—"\

-Claire Cloueh (Semor Statulory Audltor)

Statutory /\udltor
London, United Kingdom

24 April 2020
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Ardonagh Services Limited

Statement of Comprehensive Incomie for the Year Ended 31 Decémber 2019

‘Turnover
Salaries and as$ociated costs

Administrative 8xpénses

Depreciation, amortisation and impairment of non-financial asset$

Opetating loss

Gain/(loss) on disposal of invesimenis

Adjustmént 1o fair value of contingent consideration
Tinpairment - inyestment ‘

Finarice inéome

Financg-costs

Net finance incomic

Loss hefore tax
Tax credit

Loss for the year

The above results were derived from continuing operations,,

The notes on pages 181655 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Note
4
7

2019 2018
£000 £000
28,147 49,907
(25.469 (33:308)
(54,478) (46,680)

(9,732) (4239
(61:532). (34,320)
650 (140,232)

311 -

) -
29,600 18:096
(11,466) (10,828
18,134 7,268
{42:446) (167,284)
19,013 '3,946.
(23,433) (163,338)




Ardonagh Sérvices Limited

(Registration nimber: 07476462) '
‘Statement of Financial Position as at 31 December 2019

2019 2018
Note £000 £ 000
Non-current-assets
Infangible asscis 10 9.688. 15,470
Property, plant afid equipment 1 4,963 5,074
Right of use assets 12 710 s
Tnvestiments in subsidiaries undertakirigs 13 117,491 113,950
Deferred ‘tax asséts b o 13,646, _ 1,833
146,498 136,327
Current assets’ ‘
Cash.and cash equiivalents 16. 9,378 5,819
“Trade and-other receivables i5 1,239,179 1,275,668
Carrent tax. dssets 9 , - v 2,559
1.248.557 1,284,046
Gurrent liabilities
‘'rade and othierpavables 18 609.585 610,062
Borrowings A7 173:323 162,526
1.ease liabilities 12, 1,949 =
‘Tax liabilities 9 332 ‘ -
Provisions : 21 681 5,399
Cirrent liabilities 785870 777,987
Net current assets: _ 462.687 506,039
Non-current liabilities
Lease ligbilities 12 3,490 -
Provisions 21 137 263
Trade and other payables. 18. 3;381 . 16,750
7,008 17,013
Net assets 602,077 . 625373

‘?lihe' notes on pages 18 to 55 form an integral, part of these finanhcial statements.
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Ardonagh Services Limited

 (Registration iumber: 07476462)
Statement of Financial Position as at 31 Décembér 2019 (continued)

2019 2018
Note: £000 £000

“Capital and Feserves
Called up share capital 20 1,739,092 1,739,002
Share premium-reserve’ 117,980 11 7',_98(-)
Capital contribution 33291 33,054
Retained losses (1:288,186) {1,264,733)
Total equity .. 602177 625,373

Approved by the Board on 24 April 2020 aid signéd on its behal by:.

e
FE e

D Cougill.
Director

The notes an pages 18 10 §5 forin an integral part of these finasicial statements.
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Ardonagh Services Limited

Statemeit of Changes in Equity for the Yéar Ended 31 December 2019

Shdre Share Capital Retained
capital prémivm  contribution losses Total
£000 T £000 £000 £000 £000
At January 2019 1,739,092 117,980 33,054 (1,264,753) 625373
Net loss foriie year - - s (23,433)  (23.433)
Capital contributiofi ~ share-based ' .
payment * - - , 232 - . .237
Ai31 Décember 2019 __1,739.092 117,980 33201 (1,288186) 602,177

¥The Company subsumed its share-based paymerit reserve within capital contribution rescrve.

subsumed is £0.2m (2018:£0.2m).

The amount

Share Skare - Capital Retained _
capital premium-  contribution losses Total
£ 000 £000 ‘£ 000 £ 000 £000
At} January 2018 1,588,078 117,980 32,862 (1,101.415)  637.505
Net loss for the yéar” - 5 . {163;338) (163.338)
New share capital subscribed 151,014 - - - 151,014
Capita! contribution - shareshased
payment * - - 192 . - 192
At 31 Decémber 2018 1,739,092 117,980 33,054 (1.264,753) _ 625373

The notes on pages 18 t0-55 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Ardonagh Services Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December.2019

t General information
The Company is a private company limited by share capital incorporated and regisiered in England, United

ngdom The registered offiée address can be found on page 1. Déails of the prmc(pal activities of the Company
can be found in‘the Strategic report on page 2.

With effect from 12 April 2019, the Company changéd its name -from Towergate Insurancé Limited to- Ardonagh
Services Limited.

These financial statements for the year- cnded 31 December 2019 were authorised for issue by the Board oni 24 Apnl
2020 and the Statement of I inancial Position was si igned on the board's behalt by D Cougill,

2 Accounting policies

Summary of siguificant accounting policies and key accounting éstimates
The principal accounting policies applied in the préparation of these financial staiemeénts are-set out below. Thesé
policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unléss other\_use stated.

‘Basis of preparation
These financial statements were prepared in accordance: with Financial Reporting Standard 10 Reduoed Disclosure
Framework.

As awholly owned.subsidiary of The Ardonagh Group Liiited, the-Company has takén advantage of the exemption

urider sectiofi 400 of the. Companies Act 2006 not to prepare group financial stitements, and its results are included
in the consolidated finaicial sietements of its ultimate parent.

The financial statemenis are presented in GBP sterling (£), which is also the Group’s funtctional currency. Amounts

showri are rounded {o the nearest thousand, unless stated otherwise.

The findnéial ‘statements have been prcpared under the historical cost convention, as modified fo usé 4 different

measurement basis where necessary to.comply with FRS 101,

FRS 10} disclosare exemptions

In preparing théese financial Sstatements, the- Compariy applies the recognition, measurement and dls«,losure
requirements of International Financial Repariing Standards as adopted by the EU (¢ ‘Adopted TFRSS™), but makes
amendments ‘where necessary in order to comply with Companics Act 2006 and has set out below where advantage
of the RS 101 disclosure exemptions has been taken.

In:these financial, statéments, the Company has-taken advantage of the following disclosure exemptions under FRS
10} whére relévant:

« .the requirements of paragraphs 45(h) and 46 10 52 of IFRS 2 Share-based Payment concerning details of the
_number and weighted average exercise. price.of share options and how the: fair value of ggods or services
‘received was determined;
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Ardonagh Servicés Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for thé Year Ended 31 December 2019 (continued)

2 Accounting policies (continied)

+ the requirements of TFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures and of paragraphs'91.99 of TFRS 13 Fiir Value.

Measurement;

¢ the requirements of paragraph 52, the sécond sentence of paragraph 89, and paragraphs 90, 91 and 93 of IFRS 16
Leascs;

« the requirement in paragraph 38 of 1AS 1 Presehttion of Financial Statemenis 16 provide comparative year
reconciliations in-respect of oulstanding shares, property, plant and equipment and intangible assets;

* the requirements iin paragraph. 10(d) and 11 0f IAS [ Presentation of Finangial Statements to prepare -a Cash
flow $tateinent-and'the requiréments.in TAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows. regarding the same;

e the requnremems of paragraphs 10(f), 16,384, 388,.38C, 38D, 404, 40B, 40C 40D, 111 and 134 t0 136 of 1AS
1 Presentation of Financial Statements;

¢ the requirements -of paragraphs 30 and 31 in JAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in:Accounting Estimates and
Errors riégarding disclosure of new [FRS standards not yer effective at the réporting date and theif poiential
impact;

¢ the ;cqpii*t:mcms in paragraphs.17 and 18A of {AS 24 Ralated Party Disclosurcs and the requircments in iAS 24
1o disclose related party transattions entered into between two or more members of the Group, provided that any
subsidiary which is party to the transaction is wholly owned by such a member;

« the réquirements of paragraphs }30(f(ii) -(iii), 134(d) - 134(F) and 135(c) - 135(¢) of IAS 36 Impairment of

Asu.‘is in respect of disclosm"e ofv al'uation techniques, assumptions 6n which projections used in the impairment
Equivalent dlsclosul:e;s are mc)uded m.the-(:roup’s consglidated financial. statements, as required by FRS 101 where
exemptions have béen upplied.

Judgements made by the dircctors in the application of these accounting policies that have a sxgmﬁc:mt effect on the
financial statements; and estimates with a mg,mﬁcam risk of material adjustment. in the nexi year, are discussed in
the Critical accounting judgements.and key sources of estifiation uncertainty disclosure of page 33.

The directors have considéred the guidance of the UK Finaricial Reporting: Council and évenis relating to the spread
of coronavirus (COVID-19) and have treaigd this as 4 rion-adjusting subsequent évent in these financial Statements.

Going concern

The financial Statements’ of the Company hayé béen prepared on a going concern basis. At.31 December 2019 the
Company. had net assets of £602.2m (2018: £625.4m) and -fiet Surrent assets of £462. 7m (2018: £506. im). The net
current asséts include afounts receivable from rélated parties of £870.7m (2018: £921. 7m), and amounts dug to
related partics of £570.5m (2018: £580.6in). The Company rcported an operating loss. before tax of £42.4m (2018'
£167.3m). The Company was onc of a number of Group companies who at 31 December 2019, guaranteed bank and
bond debt owed. by Ardonagh Midco 3 Plc, an intermediate: holding company in-the Group .

The directors bélieve the going concern basis to be appropriate following their assessment of the Company
fifighcial position and ‘its dbllll) 10 méet its obhgamons as and when they fall due. In reaching their view on the

preparation of the Company?s financial statenmients on & going.concern basis, the diréctors have considered ihe going'

concern position of the Group and its ability to meet its obligations as and when they, fall due. This asséssinent of the
Group’s position included:
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Ardonagh Services Limited

Notes to the Financiai Statements for the Year Ended'_BI. Décember 2019 (continued)

2 Accounting policies (continued)

+ The currént capital structure and liqiiidity of the Group and its base casé and stressed cash tlow forecasts over-
the calendar years 2020 and 2021.

+ The principal risks facing the Group, including the potential financial and opérational impacts.of covid-19, and
its systems of risk management and internal control.

* Improved gperating cashflow during 2019.
Key assumptions that the directors have made in preparing the base casc cash flow forecasts are that:

+ The Group continues 16 benefit from :the Revolving Credit Facility (RCF) of £120m. With effect from 1
Decembier 2019, the contractual limitation on the amount that may be utilized of the Group's RCF was removed.
As at 31 December 2019, the RCF facility capacity was £120m and undrawn. Oni 18 March 2020 the Group’$
RCF facility was éxiénded to £170m, of which £70m was drawn, Permissible RCF drawings arc limited by the
Group’s credit facility basket.

*  Following the commencement of the main sertiement ofthe ETV liabilities during the third guarter of 2019, the
Group completes the majority of the settlement by the end of 2020,

'Kcy stress scenarios: that the directors have considéred include cumulative stresses to the basé plan-of a net reduction
‘in cashilow of £123m in 2020 ard further reductions in 2021. This resulis from:

* A sustained 20% shortfall in base case projected income in 2020 and 15% in 2021.
* ‘A [0% deterioration in base tase cash conversion rates over and above the fall in income..

+ A 15% deterioration in the quantum and acceleration of the settlement of the ETV liabilities compared to the
hase case.

»  Mitigating actions withih managedient control including delayed capital éxpénditure, a reduction in discretionary
spend and some reduction in employee headcount and remuneration.

Our siress testing indicatcs that revenues would need to décline b,\ up to 30% per month over the base case in the

next 7 quarters from the second quarter of 2020, assuming full reduction in relative cost base does not reduce at the

same speed and without other mitigating_ items actioned a$ noted above to reach our liquidity limits. Although

Covid=19 developments are fluid, these stresses would bé expected to exceed the impacts from Covid-19. Under the

stressed scenarios, the group has sufficient liquidity.

The directors have also considered the wider operational consequences and ramifications of the Covid-19 pandémic.

* Business Continuity Plans are in placé across cach of the Group's operating ségfents, with measures to manage
employee absences, access to the wider network. of over 80 offices, the ¢fficiency and stability of the Group’s
infrastructure and the ability for home working for a significant portion of our employee base. |eadership teams
and working groups led by senior mianagers. are in. place to support operitional resilience- and taking
common-s¢nse precautions with a view to ensuring the wellbeing of colleagues. We continue to review this
approach on a daily basis in line with latest global developments and governmeni guidance!

+ Insurance broking is a resilient and defensive market, which has historically had limited impact from past
cconomic or capital market downtuins. Ardonagh is. highly diversified and not materially exposed to & single’
carrier, cusiomer or market seclor o

» Although Covid~19 developments are¢ fluid, the stress. testing demonstrates the Group’s finaricial reésilience -and:
operating flexibility.
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Ardonagh Services Limited

Notes to thie Financié_l»Stat‘ements for the Year Ended 31 December 2019 (continued)

2 Accounting policies (continued)

l'ollowmg the assessment of the Company®s and'G sroup’s: finangial position, andits ability to'meet its obhgauons as
and when they fall duc mcludme the-potential findncial jraplications of the Covid- 19 pandemic included in stress
1ésts; and the wider opuauonal consequ&nccs and ramifications ofthe pandefhic; the- directors are not aware,of any
material unccitdinties; that cast significant doubt on thé Compariy® s dblhty 1o continue.as a gomg concert. “THeretore,
the financial statements have been-prepared on a going concern basis:

The ateatinting policies adopted dre consistent with those of the. previous financial year, except for the ddoptlon of
newand. amended standards as set out below.

Application of new and revised internationai Financial Reporﬂng Standards ("IFRS")
“T'hé Company adopted IFRS 16 on 1 Janitary2019.

Nature of the change

IFRS 16 *Leases’ sets otit the prmuples for the.recognition, medsuréiient and: presentation of leases, for: hoth lessees
and Jessors. II"RS 16 superseded IAS 17 ‘Lgases’ afid several. related interpretations when it became effective on 1
January 2019, The date of initial apphcauon for the Company was 1. January 2019 and so IFRS 16 applies for
accounting year. beginning onor afler that date.

Impact’

.The definition of a lease
IFRS 16 Leases bécame. mandatonly effective on 1 Jatiudry 2019. The company has applied this for the first timie in
this accounting year which, resulted in changes t6 the accounting. _pohc;es

» The righit to obtain subsiantiallyall 6f the ecoriomic benefits from the use 6f an identified asset; and
-+ The right tothe direct use of that asset.
“The: Comipdny applies the practical cxpedient in IFRS 16 not 1o qcparatu non-léase: components from lease

components-and instead, accounts for-€ach léasé: coimponent and any asSociatéd. ion-lease. components-as 4, single
lease compnnﬁm

‘Page 21



Ardonagh Services Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2019 (continued).

2 Accounting policies (continued)

Lessee accounting

The Company transitioned 1o IFRS 16 usmg thé modified fetrospective approach and as a fesult the cumulative
effect of initial application is recogrised in refairied camings at .| January 2019. The prior yéar figures were :not
adjusted.

On adoption of TFRS 16, the Company élected 10 apply the relicl-provisions available and has not.reviewed contacts
undcr the definition of a Jease per IFRS 16, 'which had previcusly not been classified as lcases under the prmmplcs
of IAS 17. Therefore, only contracts entéred into ‘or madified on or after 1 Janudry 2019 have the definition of'a
lease pér IFRS 16 applied.

In addition, the. Company decided to apply recognition cxemptions to leases with a term not exceeding 12 months
and leases wherethe under!vmg assets-are of low value:

For leases classified as operating leases under [AS 17, these leasc liabilities were measured af the présent value of
the remaining lease paymicnts; discounted using the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate as of 1 January 2019. The
Company has ised the following practical expedients permitiéd by IFRS 16 when applying this for the first time 10
leases previously classified as operatinig leasés; ' '

« Applieda single discount rate 1o a portfolio of leases with: similar characterisiics

* Applied the- e\empuon not {o recognise liabilities for leases with less:than 12 months of lease 1erm remaining

¢ Excluded initial direct costs for the measurement of right-to-use assets at.the date ofiinitial application

* Jsed hindsight in determining the léase term where thie contract contains options to extént or terminiate the lease

Right-of-use assets-are measured ai cither:

» Their carrying amount as if TFRS 16 has been applied since commencement; -discounted using the lessee's
incremental borrowing rate at the date of initial application
» An.amount equal 1o the léase liability, ddjusted for any prepaid or accruéd lease payments

No adjustments are required on transition to IFRS 16 for leases where the Company acts as a lessor, except for a
sub-lease. A reassessment of the classification of a sub-lease is required under 1IFRS 16.

JL.essor accounting:
Lessor accounting as required by IFRS 16 is substantively unchanged from that required by IAS 17. Lessors will
continue to classi ty leases as cither operating .ot finance leases using similar principles to those in [AS.17.

The Company does not undertake arrangements as a lessor other than as a sublessor, but subléssor arrangements are
not material to the Company.. IFRS 16 did not therefore impact lessor accounting by the Company.

Traasition

‘The- Company adoptéd IFRS 16 by applying the modified retrospective approach; which requires the cumulative

effect of initial -application of IFRS 16 to be recognised as an adjustment 10 the-opening halance of rétairied eamings
on the 1 January 2019 daté of mmal’apphcanon without restating prior years. There is no impact on retained

cammgs on | January 2019 as the Company recognised the right-of-Use ‘asset at an amount equal to the lease

liability subject to other adjustments (sée below), s permitted by IFRS 16 when initially applying this new

accounting standard.
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Ardonagh Services Limited

Notes to the Financial Stateménts for the Year Ended 31 December 2019 (continued)

2 Aécounting policies (continued),

The-Company appliéd the. following practical ‘expedients on the | Januiiry 2019 date of initial application of IFRS

I6:

The right-6f-use asset was recognised at an-amount equal 10 the lease liability at the.daté of initial appllcahon‘

adjusted By the amount in.the statement of financial position immedigtely beforé ‘the. date of initial .application

for any prepaid.dr.aterucd Icase pavments and provisions forongrous leases;

A single discount raté was- used for a.portfolio of leases with reasonibly similar characteristics, iii particular for
property leases in the same lease ferm grouping;

The. right-of-us¢. ‘asset corresponding 10 -cxisting, opcratmg Jeases was, as an: dlternative 10 pérforming ‘an

impairment review, reduced b) 1he amouint 6f the related oncrous lease provisidns |mmtd1ately before.ihe date of

initial apphcauon,
Initial direct costs were excluded from the measurement of the right-of-use dsset;.and

Hindsight was. used, .in particular in detcrmlmng the lease term fof drrangements. with options 16-exiend of
terminate the lease:

Theeffect of adopting TERS 16 as at 1 January. 2019 was ‘as follows:

£000
Assets
Right of usc assets’ 7.868
Trade and othér recéivables N (719)
7,149
Liabilities
Lease liabilities (14;805)
“Trade and other payables 6;817
Provisions .. 839
(7,149)

The weighted average.incremental borrowirig rate applied to lease liabilities recognised in the Statement’ of l “inancial
Position at the: date of initial application is 13.5%.

The lease liabilities af 1 January 2019 can be reconciled to the: operating lease commiitmenis a8 at 31. December
2018, as Tollows:

Page 23



Ardonagh Services Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2019 (con"tin.u,ed)

2 .Accounting policies (continued)

£000

Opérating, lease commitments af 3 December 2018 541
Effect of discounting future lease payments (137)
T 04

Diflerences in lease term a0
Differences in lease population 14,462
Differences in leasé payments (24)
Other differences @n
Lease liability af { January 2619 T 14,805

Accounting policies following adoption of 1IFRS 16.
Below is a simmary of the new accounting policies of the Company following, the adoption of RS 16, which have
been applied from the date ol initial application.

Right-of-use assets

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencemént date of the lease (i.e. the date the underlying
asset: is available for use). Right<of-use assets. are measured at ‘cost, less any accumulated. depreciation. and
impairment losses, and aré adjusted for certain remeasurements-of the lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets
includes the dmount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct-costs incurred, and leasé payments made at or before
th¢ commencement date of the feasé less.any lease incentives received. Unless' the Company is reasonably certain to
obtain ownership of tti¢ leased asset at the end of the lease term, the recognised right-of-use dsséts are deprecnated
on a straight-line basis over the shorter. of the es_umaled ‘uiseful hfe and the leasé term. Right-of-use assets are subject
to impairment.

Lease liabilities.

At the commencement. date of the lease, the Company récognises. Jease liabilities medsurcd at the présent. value of
lease payments to be made over the lease term: The lease payments include fixed payments (including in-sibstance
fived payments) l¢ss any lédse inceéntives receivable, variable lease payments that.depend on an index or a rale, and
arounts expected to be paid under residudl value guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price of a
purchase -option. reasonably cériain to be exercised by the: Coripany and. payments of penalties for: terminating a
lease, if the lease term refleets the Company exercising the option to terminate. The variable lease pa_yments that do
'not depend on. an index or a rate are-recognised as an ‘expense in. the year on. which the. event or condition that
triggers the payment occrs.

In c.ak,ulalmg the present valuge. of lease payments, the Company uses the iricremental honm\mg rate at the: lease
‘comimencement date if the interesi rate implicit in the Jéase is not readily determiinable; which is generally the case.
After the commencement date, the amount of Ie.ise habrlmes is mcreased io reﬂu,t the aucretmn of mtcrest and
modmcauon, a change in the ledse 1erm a changc in the in-substance ﬁx»d lease pavmcnts or a change it the
assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.
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Ardonagh Services Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for thé Year Ended 31 December 2019 (continuéd)

2 Accounting policies (continued)

Leases of low value assets-

The Company elects on g leasé-by-lease basis whether io applv the lease of low-valie assets exemption to leases of
office equipment that are iconsidered to be of low value (i.e. below £5,000). Lease payments on leases.of low-value
assets are recognised. as an expense ona stralgm-hm, basi$ over th¢ fease term.

There are no other amendments to accounting standards, or IFRIC interpretations, that are &ffective for the year
¢nded 31 December 2019 and that have had a material impact on the Company.

Turnover

(ay Management chargé

The Company has recharged the cost$ incuired o certain (direct dnd mdlrect) trading subsidiarics throughout the
year. The management fee recéivable (the total of the recharged costs) is shown as wrmaver in:the Staterient of
Comprehenswc Incomie.

{b) Other income
Other iricome relaies to incentive paymenits received from suppliers.

(c) Carrier Mﬁnagcment

The Company receives income’ from cenain carriers in respect of strategxc carfier méahagement. The Conipany
safisfies its performdnce obligation to the carriérs over time and. thus recognises revenue over iime. The Carrier
Management Income- is:shown as tumover in the Statefnent of Comprehensive Income.

Taxation

Currentax:

Current:tax is recoghised. for the amouni of tax payable in respect of the taxable profit for the current or past
reporting periods using the tax rates and taws that have been ehacted or substantively- énacted by the reporting date.

Deferred tax

Defem:d tax is recognised in respect of all timing differences a the reporting date, cxcept as othérwise ‘indicated.

Deferred tax assets are only recognised to- the extem that it is probable.they will be recovired against the reversal of
deferréd tax liabilitics or other future taxable profits, 1f and when-ali conditions for retaining tax allowances for the.
cost ofa fixed asset hdve been met, deferred tax is reversed. Deferred tax aséets and deferred tax liabilities are only

offset if there is a legally enforceable right 16 set.off current tax assets against current tax liabilities. Deférred tax
asset-and the deferred tax lldblhly can only be offsei when they relate.to inéorme taxes levied by the same taxation
authority, Where deferred tax is offset on different taxable entities this i is allowed when it is mtendmg either 1o settie
current tax assets or liabilities on a net basis, or 1o realisé the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

The fax expecnse for the year comprises current and detcrrcd tax. Income tex is recognised in Statement of
Comprehensive Income, except. that a change attributable to an jtem of income or expense rcc.ogmsed as other
comprehensive income is also recagnised diréectly in other comprehénsive income. Simiilarly, incomie tax is charged
or credited directly.to eqity if it relatesto items that are credited or charged diréctly toequity.
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Ardonagh Services Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the. Year Ended 31 Décember 2019 (continued)

2 Accounting policies (¢otitinued)

Intdngible assets

Trademarks, patents and licences

Brand intangible- assels are recognised. an & business ‘combination ‘bécause they are sepatable or arise from
conitaétual or'other jegal rights. Theif fair value has been calculated as the sum of the pieésenit value of projecied
royalty payments ‘thut would be paid to licence the ng,ht 1o -use the brand. These assels aré amortised on a
“straight-line basis. over their estimaed useful fives of '3 years,. “thh considers. the Company’s. track record of
retaining brands for a period and éxperience of the insurance brokmg mnrk.c\,

Computér sofhvare.

Acquired compultef software licences are recognised when they are ‘purchased ‘separafely or are recognised on a
businéss combination. Their-fair value is' calculated by refefence to the net book vatué scquiréd. These costs aré
‘gmortised on a straight-ling basis over their estimated usétul lives of 4 years.

'_lrgrgr,:ylly—generared‘compmer; software and-assets under.construction
Expenditure on research activities'is recognised as an expense.in the year-in which it is incurred.

An internally-gengrated mtangrb}e asset ammg from the development of computer software (or frori- the
development ‘phasé of -an iniernal project) is ‘fecognised if, and only if, all the. following condmons have been
demonstrated:

« 1hie technical feasibility of completing the asset so thatit will be available for usé or sale;

« the intention to complete the asset-and to use or.sell iy,

« the abilily 10 usé or séil the asset;

. how (he asset mll generate hnure economu. beneﬁts

the asset; and

*‘the abzlm' io-‘méasuié rcliably the: cxpcndnun. aunbutablc t0 the dsset dufing. its devclopment.

The amount initially recognised is the:sum of the expenditure incurred from the date when the 1ntang1ble asset first
meets ihe: recognition criteria ligied above and is classified as an asset ‘under conitruction. Where no
mtemally-generated intangible asset can be recognised, devclopment expenditire is recogmsed in the: Statement of.
Comprehenswc Incame in thc year when if i$ incurred.

‘The. fair vaiue of iftériially-generated ‘computer Software acquired on a bisiness combination is calculated by
reférence Lo thic Current cost to recreate the sofiware.

]ntema\l)'-gmerated mtang\ble assets -are ot amortised in the. périod subsequcm 1o ‘initial recognition but before
they dre ready: for use. Amoftisation comimences when they are ready for use as mlended by management, They are:
then feported at cost les§. accumulated amortisation and accumulated impdirment Josses, on the saine basis as
intangibleassets that are acquired separiitely. lriternally-gencrated intangible assets are amoriised on a smughl-lme
bagis.over their estimated uséful lives of 4 vears.
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2019 (continued)

2 Accounting policies (continued)

-Derecognition of tmangtble asseis

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal; 6r when no future economic benefits are expected from. use or
.dnsposal Gains or losses arising ‘from derecognition of an mt:mgxble asset, measured as the difference beuwveen the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying .amount of the ‘assei are’ mogmstd in.the Statemént of Comprehensive
Income when the asset is derecognised.

Impairmeni of asseis

Intangible assels that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation and afé tested annually for
impairment, Assets that are subject to amortisation or deprecxanon are réviewed for impairment at cach Statement of
Financial Position” date or whetiaver- events or changes in-circumstances indicate that the carrymg amount may not
be recovérable. An impairment loss.is recogmsed for the amount by which the asset’s carrying.amount e\ceeds its
recoverable, amount, The recoverable amount s the ‘higher of ai asset’s fair value less-costs of disposal and its value
in tise. If it is.not possible 1o. estimate the’ ruovemble amount of ‘an individuil assct; the recoverable amount of the
“cash generating unit” o which the asser belongs is determined, being the lowest level for which there are separately
idenfifidble cash flows.

Any impairment charges ansmg from the review of the carrying value ofgoodvx iff and intangible assects are, 'where
material, presénted separately on the face of the Statément of Comprehensive Income.

Property, plaot and equipment.
Assets are stated at their net book value (historical cost less accumulated depreciation). Depreciation i$.calculated fo
write off the cost of such assets on a siraight'-line basis over their estimated useful lives.

The assets® residual values arid useful lives are reviewed and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of edch repomng:
year. Property, plant -and equlpment is derecogm‘:ed on disposal, or when no future economu. benefits are expected
from use or dxsposal Gains or losses. arising, from dcrccogmtmn of property, plant and equipment, medsured a$ the
difference between ‘the nét d;sposal proceeds and the cafrying amount of | the asset aré recognised in Statement of
Comp_rehcnswu Income when the assel is dercg{ogmsed

Wheré asseis under construction projects ‘are: indomplete; .costs are capitalised as work in progress and included
within property. plant and equipment dsséts. These costs .are not subject’ to depreciation unti} completion of the
praject,

Depreciation

Depreciation is charged $o0 as to write off thé cost of assets over their estimated useful lives, as follows:
Asset class Depréciation method and rate

Leasehold improvements Ovér the remaining life of the lease

Fixtures and fittings 15% per annum straight line or-over 6 years
Motor Vehicles: 225% per annum straight ling

Furniture and-office equipment 20% per-aiinum straight line

Computer cquipment: :25% per aiiniim straight lific:
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Endéd 31 December 2019 (continued)

2. Accounting policiés (continued)

Investments in subsidiary wadertakings

A subsidiary is an entlty aver which the Company has control. The Campany controls an investee when it -is
exposed, or has rights, to variable réturns-from ifs involvement Wwith the investee and has the ability to affect those
réturns through its power over the investee. Investmenits in subsididries are! accounted. for- at cost. less; where,
appropriate, impairment.

‘Investments in associates

An associgle is an enfity over which the Company has sngmhc.ant influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor an
‘interést in a joint ventuse. Szg,mhcam influenée is the power to participate in the financial and operating policy
decisions of the investee buris.not control or joint control over those policies,

The results and assets and liabilities of" associates are mcorporau,d in the financial stafeménts using the equity
méthod of accoun(mg Unider the equity method, investments. in associates dre carried. in the Statemehi of Financial
Position at cost s adjusted for- post-acquisition changes in the Company“s-share of the net agseis of the associate,
less-any impairment in the vajue of the investment,

Financial instruments

Recognition and initial measurement

Financial assets and: findncial liabilitics are recognised when the Company becomes a party io the contractual
provisions of the financial instrument, and they are. measured initially at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributablc 16 the atquisition or issuc of financial asscts and financial ligbilitics (other than financial assets
and financial habmtnes at fair value throuigh prom or loss) are added 6 or ‘deducted. from the fair value of the
findncial assets or financial liabilities; as appropriate, on'initial recognition. Transaction costs directly’ attributable to
the acqmsnuon of financial assets: or financial labilitics at fair valug through profit or loss are recognised
immiediately in Statement of Comprehensive income.

Derecogpition
Finoncial assels

The Company dcrccngmses a ﬁnanclal asset when

- the.conlraciiml rights to the cash flows from the fifiaricial asset expire,

- it tranisfers the right io receive the. wmmuual cash flows in a trdnsaction in. which substantially:all of the risks ‘@nd.
rewards of ownciship of the financial asset afe transferred; or

- the Company néither-transfers nor rétainis substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and it does not
retain control ofthe finaricial-asset.

e/ derecognmon of a financial asset measured at.amortised cost, the difference betwéen the asset's carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration regeived and feceivable is recognised in he Statement of Compretiensive income,

On derecognition of an investment'in an equity instrument  which the Company has clected on initial recognition to
measure at fair value through other comprehensive income, the cumulative gain or loss previously acéumulated in
the investment revaluation reserve is not feclassified to the Statément of Comprehensive Income, but is transférred’
1o retained earnings. '
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 Décember 2019 (continved)

2 Accounting policies (continued)

Financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecoghised when it is; ¢ ‘gu»hed, discharged, cancelled or expires. The- différénce
betwegn the. carrying value of the original financi liability and the consideration pald and payable, including any
non:cash assets.iransferred or lidbilities assumed, is recogniséd in profit or loss. Wheré an existing financial liability
is replaced by another from the same lender on substaitially different terms, or the térms of an existing hablllty are
substantially modified, such an exchange or modification,is freated s a derecognition of the original liability and the
tfecognition of a new l;gbnhl}

‘Offsetting

Financial assets and financial ‘liabilities .are offset and the nel ;amount présented in the ‘Statement of - Financial
Position wheh,. and only when, the. Company ciirrently has ajegally énforceable.right to set off the amounts and it
intends either to settle them on a net basis.or o realise the asset and settle the liability sunultaneouslv

Classification and: su’b‘sei;u'em measurement of financial assets

Financial. assets.ure classified into one of the following three: ‘categories:-
- findncial asséts at amortised cost;.
- financial assets at fair value thiough other comprchensnvc incotme (FVTOCH); er
- financial assets at fair value’ Lhrough the.profit or loss (FVT! PL).

All recognised financial asscts' are subsequénily measured in their entirety “at cither amortised cost or fair value,
depending on their classification.

Fii\aﬁcial assets classified as a’mprﬁéed cost
Financial assets that:medi both of the foliowing conditions are ¢iassified and subsequently measured at amortised
COSt:

- the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is 1o hold financial assets in order fo collect
contractual cash flows; and

- thé Sontractual terms of the findncial dsset give rise on specitied dates 1o cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Thé amortised cost of a financial assét js the amount at which' the financial asset is measured at initial recognition
minus ‘the principal repayments, plus the cumuldtive amortisation. using the effective interest method. ‘of any
difference between that initial amount and the maturity amount, -adjusted for any loss dllowance,

‘The-Company’s financial assets measufed at amrtised cost include trade and other receivablés and c’»ashb and cash
¢quivalents,

Reclassifications

Financial assets ar€ not reictassifi ed- subsequent to theit initial récognition: They would ‘only be reclassified if the
Company weré (o change’ its business mode! for managing; its financial assets,. in which. case the affected i hancial.
assets would be:reclassified ifthie year following that change;
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Notes to the Finarcial Statements for the Year Ended 31. December 2019 (continued)

2 Accounting policies (Continied)

Impairment of financial assets

The Company rccogmscs loss allowances for expected credit losses (ECL) on financial ingtruments thiat are. not,
meuasured at FVPTL, this is Trade and other receivables-

“T'he Company. classifies its financial instruments intg stage 1, s:a_ge.é and stagé 3, based on the applied impairment
methodology. as described befow:

Stage’ I fbr ﬁﬁam’,‘lal instruiments where there has not been a signiﬁcanl‘ ihc’r«.ase n credit tisk since. iniitial
I2-momh ECL. A T

Stage 2: for financial instruments where théfe has been a significant intredse in credit risk-since initial recognition
but they are.not credii-impairéd, the Company recogises an allowance. for the lifétine ECL.

Stage 3: for-crédit-impaired financial instruments, the Company recognises the lifetime ECL.

‘The-Company measures loss allowances at-an.amourit équal to the lifetime. ECL, except for the following, | for-which.
‘they are measured asa 12-month ECL:

- debt securities that are determined to'have & Iow credit risk (equwalem 1o ifivestment grade rating) at the reporting
ddte; and
- other financial instfumenis on which the credit risk has not increased significantly since their initial recognmon

The Company considers a debt security to have low credit risk when their credit risk ranng is equivalent to the.
globally understood definition of * investment grade™.

A 12-month ECL is the portion of the ECL that results from default events on o finangial ‘instrument that are
probabie within 12 months from the reporting date:

Provisions for credit-impairment ar¢ recognised in the statément of income and are reflected in accumulated
provision balances against ¢ach relevant financial instruments balance.

I)ef nition.of default-
The Company consxd«.rs (he followmg as consuluung an evem of defaulz for mrerndl crcdn risk management'

recoverabk

+ when there is a breach of financial covenants by the counterparty; or:
* information dev eloped internally or- obtamed from external sources indicates that.ihe debtor is unliKely ‘o pay its
creditors, including the Company, in full,

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Company: considers: that default has octurred when'a financial asset is more-

‘than 90 ddys past-due unless the: (,ompany has réasonable and ';upp(mabln informiation to' demonstrate that a longer
or shorter default criterion is mare appropriate:.
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2019 (continued)

‘2 Accounting policies (continued)

Write-off policy

For trade, receivables; the Company -applies the simplificd approach, which requires expected lifetime losses to be
récognised from inifial recoghition of the receivables.

To meéasure the expected credit losses, trade: receivables and contract dssets have been grouped baséd on-shared
credit risk. characieristics and the days past due. The contract asscts. relate fo unbilléd work in progress and have
substantially the same risk-characteristics s the trade receivables forthe sime types of contracts: The Company has
thérefore concluded that the expected loss rates for trade receivables are a reasonable approxxmauon of the loss rates
for the contract assets.

The expecicd loss.rate$ ate based on ‘the payment prafiles of sales over a period. of 36-menth before 31 December
2019 and the corresponding historical credit losses experienced within' this penod The historical. loss rates are
adjusted io reflect current and -forward-looking. infarmation on macroeconomic fadiors affecting the ability of the
customers o séitle the receivables: The Coripany has -identified the. GDP and the unemployment rate ‘of the
countries. in which it sells ity goods and services 1o be the most relevant factors, and au.ordmgly adjusts the
historical l0ss rates based on éxpected changes in these factors.

Classification and subseqnent measurement of financial Jiabilities
All financial liabilitics, other than those classifi ed as financial liabilities:at FVTPL are measured &t amortised Cost
using the' efiective interest rate method.

The Company's financial liabilitics include borrowings, and trade and othér payables.

Borrowings are tlassified as currént liabilities unless the Company has an unconditional right to defer ettlement of
thé Jiability for at least 12 months after the Statement of Financial Position date. Borrowings are recognised initially
at fair value, net of trainsactions costs incurred. They are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective.
iftérest rate method.

Trade payables. are initially recognised 4t fair value and are subsequently measured at amortised cost.

Im.mctal habnlmu not mcasured at amortised cost are ¢Classified 'and measured at FVTPL when the: financial
liability is contingent consideration:

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value ‘with any gains or losses arising on changes in- fair ‘value
rccogmscd in profil or loss to the extént that they are riot part of a designated hedging reélationship. The net gain_or
loss.recognised in proln or ioss incorporates dny iniéiest paid on the financial fiabilities.

Finance income and costs poficy

The Campany’s finarice income:and finaiice costs include:
* interest income

« interest éxpense

+ unwind of discount on provisions and leasc labilities'

Interést income and expense are recognised using the effective: interest method for debt instruments measured
subsequently at amortiSed cost.
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2019 (continued)

2 Accounting policies (continued)

Provisions

A provision is recognised where thiere is a present obligation, whether legal or constructive, as a result of a past
event- for whichi it is probable that a transfer of coonomic benefits will be required 1o sertle the.obligation and 4
reasoniable estimate can be made.of the amount of the-obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is management’s best estimate of the consideration required 10 seitle the.
present obligation gt the Suitement of Financial Position daté, taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obhgauon

‘Where apprdpriatc' the Co‘mpany discounts provisions to their present value. The. unwinding of the provision
discounting is included as dn’intérest charge within' finance costs in the Statément of Comprehmswe Income. In the
Jyear the Company discount rate used.to calculate the present value of provisions:was drended to reflect the risk-free
rate.

Share-based payments
The-Group dperates an cquity-seitled, sharé-based compensation plan, under ‘which the Company reccives sérvices
from employees a5 consideration tor the, award of Management [ncentive Plan ("MIP") shiares. MIP shares have no
dividend, of voting rights and cannot.bé sold, they are convertible to ordinary shares. of the Ardonagh Group on
occurrence of a crystallisation gveit, this bemg defined as the carlier of a liquidity event, an Initial Public Offering
("IPO") ot a winding-up.

The Group has the option to repurchase MIP shares if employees leave the Group prior to the octurrence of a
crystalfisation- event. The fair value of the employee: services received in exchange for the grant of the options is
récognised as an expebse, measured based .on the fair value of the options granted and recognised.on a straight-line
basis gver the vesting period. At the end of cach reporting year the Company assésses the length of the vesting
period based on the most likely date of crystallisation, wheré a crystallisation event is not deemed probable no
expense is recogniséd..

Share capital
Ordinary sharés dre- classified as equity. lncrememal <ost directly attributable 1o the issue of new shares.or options
are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from, the proceeds.

Financial guarantees.

Contracts meeting the definition of a financial guarantee are recognised at fair value under IFRS 9, or under IFRS 4
*Insurance Lommus where the conditions required. in order for it to be regarded s an insurance contract arc

satisfied: This is determined on a contract by contract basis, dépending on whether, the risk transferred represents a

financial risk.or an insurance risk.
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2 Accounting policies (continued)

‘Employee benefits

Pension costs.

A defined contribation ‘plan‘is & pension plan tinder which fixed contributions are paid into a separaie entify and has
no legal or Gonsteuctive obligations 1o pay further coniributions if the fund does.not -hold sufficient assets 10 pay all
g,mplo_y(.ea the benefits rélating to employee.service inthe current and prior year.

For defined contribution plans contributions are paid 10, pubhcly or privately administeted pension insurancé plans

on a mandatory. or contractual basis. The contributions are rewgms;d as employeé benefit. expense when they are.

due. If contribution payments exceed the contribution due for sérvice, the-extess is recogniSed as un asset:

3 Critical accounﬁng judgeéments and key sources of estimation uncertainty

Estimates and |udgemuus used in preparing the financial statements are’ continually cvaluated and are: based on

hnsmncal experience dnd other factars, including expectations of future events that are believed 10 be reasonable..

The resulting accounting esiimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related aciual results.

The estiinates and assummiptions. that have a significant effect on the carrying amoumts of assets and liabilities are
discussed below,

Key Sources of estimation uncertainty

Leases — determinsation of the discount rate

Under IFRS 16 the-Company i§ fequired to measure-the lease Tiabilities at*the present Vilue of léase payments o bé
‘made over the léase term. In substantially dll ledsés the Compdny usks the incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date because thie rate implicit in the lease is Aot readily determinable. The determination.of the
incremental. borrowing rate fids a material:impact on the amounts initially récognised as a lease liability dnd on the

corresponding’ rlght-of “use asset, It also impacts the amounts that are subeeqm.mly recognised as amortisation and’

interest éxpense in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

The (.ompany has deterniined ‘the discount rate based on. the Group's available secondary bond market yield 10
maturity pricing, and thé discount rate used for-éach Iéase deépends on the Jease:i amaunt and-term.

The weighted -average discount rate used to calculate the lease liabilitics at the daté of transition to IFRS 16 is 13.5%
as.described in hote 2.

Impairment of trade and other: réceivables
The ‘Company ‘makes an estimate of the: rewverable value of wrade receivables and other debiors -including

intercompany receivables, Whert' dssessing impairment of trade and other receivables, management considers: facors,

including the credit rating of'the recéivable, the agéing prohle and historical éxpefience. The Company applies the
TFRS 9 simplified approach to measufing expected credit losses’ whuch uses. a lifetime éxpected loss allowance for
trade receivables and contract assets. See note 1S for the net carrying amount of the receivables and assoclated
impairment provision.

The bad:debit provision amounted io £0.2m as at 31 Detember 2019 ( 2018 residied: £41 0m),
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3 Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

Tmpairment of investments in subsidiaries
Tnvestments in. subsidiaries-are revicwed for i xmpalrmem whenever événts or: changes in circumstances indicate 1hat
the carrying amount of (e asset may exceed its recoverable amotnt.

An impairment test is performed by comp.mng the invesiment's uarrymg amount with i1$ recoviérablé amount. The
recoverable amount is: the higher of"its fair value less costs.of disposal and its valug i in use, where its VIU is the
présent value of its ‘future cash flows. An: impairiment fest. Tequires the application of ‘significant judgement betause
‘it relies on key assumptions, mcludmg forecast cash flows, a discount rate;.a terminal growth rate and an EBITDA
muhiplé:

Further details of the annudl impairment test, and of the assumiptions made, are et dut in note 13.
Deferred fax assets

ngmf' icant Judg«mem 15 required in determining the asset: recognised in réspect- -of deferred tax. A deferred tax.assct

is recogmsed for temporary timing differences, butl management’s best estimate. is used to determme ihe extent to

which it i$ probable that taxable profit will be available in'the future: again$t which the temporary differénces can be
unl;s\,d and to determine the amount of this taxable profit. Deferred 1ax assets are measured in accordance with thu_

tax fates and laws that have been enacted or substantively, enacted by the énd of the reporting year. See note: §-for
details.of the deferred tax assets recognised during the year..

The deferred tax asset as at 31 December 2019 is £1 3.6m:(31 Decemiber 2018 restated: £1.8m).

Critical jndgements in‘applying accounting policies
Disposal of én associale

The Company. disposed of its ¢ntire shareholding in Bravo lavesiment Holdings Limited (Bravo) in 2018 see Note.
14. The Company applied significant Judgemem in deigrmining whether. the disposal constituted a sale.given that the
Company retained some rights and has continuing involvement in relation to Bravo, in pariicular a right fo appomt'

one non-executive directof to the Board- of Directors of Bravo, a call option. over the shares™ of Bravo, and
inyolvement in that the. Company provides ceriain services to Bravo. The Company detcrined that the transaction
(.()l’lSlltuth a sale-due to the following:

«+ The Corpany does nof retain any voting or other éonomic rights,:so it does nét have any rights-over the profit or
net dgsels of Bravo

. 'l he sale pnue and the pnce of ather services pmvnded by’ the Group 0 Bra\»o were dclermm::d at arm’s length,
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Notes to the Financiai Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2019 (continued),

4 Turnover

The analysis of the Company's furnover for the year from ¢ontinuing operations is as follows:

2019 2018

£.000 £000-

Other income. 167 213
‘Carriér management 308 -
‘Manageémeént charge 27472 49,694
28,147 49,907

Turiover consists entirely of income: geherated in the United Kingdom.
‘The manageméent -chirge noted, in thé table: above. includes central costs- 1T, legal, HR and othér central costs’

incurréd bythe Company.and recharged to fellow group s subsxdla.nes

5 Operaiing loss
Arrived at after charging/(crediting):

2019 2018

£ 000 £000
Depreciation expense, 2,872 2,454
IFRS 16 Depreciation expense 1,440 B
Amontisation and other amounts writlen off intangibles 5,420 1,785
‘Auditor's remuneration: audit of these financial statements 43 37
Intercompany bad-debt provision 170 5:331
‘Restructuring obligations 263 794
Profiton disposal of propérty, plant dnd equipment {1,994) -
Lioss on dispdsai ol"iman_gible assets . 584 -

Amoinits receivable by the- Company’s. auditor in vespect of services 1o the Company, other than thé audit of the
Company’s fing _ual statements, have not been disclosed as the information is required instead 10 be disclosed on a
consolidated. basis in the consolidated: financial statements of the Company’s ultimalé parént, ’ Thie Ardonagh Group:
Lxmucd

During the year eided 31 Décember 2019, the. Company made:an adjustment 10 a provision agamst intercompiny.
detit due from the Towergate Financial Group of £0.2m (2018: £5:3m); reflecting the mdvement in the Towergate
Financial intercofiypany balances in the period. Thesé balances.are deemed unrecoverable and hence have been fully.
‘impaired.
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Notes to the Findncial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2019 (continued)-

6 Finance income and finanée costs

2019 2018
£000 £000
Finapce income
Iiitérest income on bank defiosits L7 34
Interest receivable from.related partics. , 28:383 17,272
Total findnice income ' 29,600 . . 18096
‘Finance costs
Interest expense on loans and borrowings (11,466) - {10,828)
Net finaice income . 1&13‘4 7,268

As at 31 Decerbér 2019 the Compan) was due a'tota) of £46.9m (2018: £25.5m) of interest.on loans 1o other group
undertukings. The.amounis.dii¢ were as. follows: £6.5m (2018: £3:9m) Neévada Investments 4 Limited; £9.3m (2018 -
£5.6m) Nevada Inyestments. 7 ‘Limited; £7.3m (2018: £4. 415) Nevada InvestorCo lelted £11:3m (2018: £6.9m)
\'cvada investments: 5 Limited; £0.3m (2018: £0.5m) Price Forbes Holdings: Limited; £7. Om (2018: £4:2m) Luinar
101 Limited; and £5.0m (2018: Nil) Atlanta Investment! Holdings B Limited.,

In thee year ended 31 Décember 2019, the interest expense-ofi the £122.0m subordinated loan, charged at 8.85% per
annum, totalled £10.8:(2018: £10.8m).

“The: remaining balance ot £0.7m within finance cost représents mainly the unwinding of discount calculated on
provisions (rote 21) and ROU assets (note 12).

7 §t"aff costs

The aggregate payrol] cosis (including directors! remunération) were as:follows:

2019 2018

£000 £.000

Wages-and salaries 22,076 27,731
Sécial security costs 2,853 4,053
Pension costs; defined contribution scheme- 431 341
‘Redundanicy cusis ] 109 1,183
25,469 33,308

The:average monthly numbeér of person's employed by the Company (mcludmg directors) during the year, analysed
by category was as’ follows:
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7 Staff costs (continied)

2019 2018
No: No.
Administration 228 367
Sales 3 14
Manugement 27 36

258 417,

Following the Business Transformation discussed in the Strategit Report; the Company nd longer inctirs pa}Toll cost
on behalf of the group segments and recharges thein. Therefore; the saff cost of £22.1m, _reported in. the 2019
Statement of Comprehensive Incomé, represents the Company expense.

In thc year ended 31 December- 2018, the gross cost incurred by the Company: before recharges ‘was ‘£27.7m of

which £8.7m was rcchargcd The staif: cost remaining in the Company- -and . charged 16 the' Statement. of
Comprehensive Income was £24.6m.

8 Directors' remuneration

The emoluments of all directors dre paid by other Group companies, which make no recharge 16 ‘the Company.
These directors dre directors of The Ardondgh Group Limited and/or other fellow subsidiaries, Their total
émoluments are included in the consolidated financial statements- of The Ardonagh Group Limited.

Al directors benefit from qualifying third-party. indemnity provisions in place during the financial period and af ihe,
date of this réport; -
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9  Income tax:

Tax (charged)/credited in the Statément of Comprehensive Income

Current taxation
UK corporation tax
UK -corporation tax-adjustment to prior periods

‘Déferred taxation

Arising from origination and reversal of temporary ditferences
Arising from préviously unrecognised tax loss, tax credit or témporary
difference.of prior periods’

“Total deferred taxation

Tax ¢redii in e Statement of Comprchensive Income

The differences-are reconeiled 'bcidw:

Los§ before tax.

‘Corporation'iax at slandard rate of 19% (2018:19%)

‘Expenses.nol deduttible for tax. purposes

Deferred tax credit from ‘un'fccogriis‘ed temporary diferénce from a-prior
period.

Tax-expense relating to changes in tax rates or laws

Adjustmentsto tax charge in respect of previous pefiods - ¢arrent {ax
Increase from effect of caﬁilal allowances depreciation
Non-taxable.gains on disposal.of invéstments

Adjustments 16 tax:charge in respect of prévious-petiods = deferred tax
Group relicf (surrendercd) claimed-for nil consideration

“Total tax credit
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2019 2018
£000 £000
7,466 2,567,
(266) (454)
7.200 2,113
11,954 1,833
(144) -
11,813 1,833
19,013 3,946
2019 2018
£ 000 £.000
(42,446} (167.284)
8,065 31,784
309 (1,010)
11,277 972
(80) (101),
(266) (454)
(751) k%
- (26,643)
(4 -
600 (600)
19,013 3,946



Ardonagh Services Limited

Notes to the Financial State’ménts for thé Year Ended 31 December 2019 (continued).

9 Income tax (continued)

Finante Bill 2016 enacted provisions fo: reduce the main rate.of UK corpnratmn tax 16 17% from 1 April 2020.-
However, in the, Marchi 2020 Budget-it was announced that the reduction iri the UK rate 10 17% will now not occar
and the Corporatn)n Tax Raie will be held al 19%. As® substannvc enactment is aficr the balancesheet.date, defered
tax balances as ai:31 Decembei 2019 continue. to be measured at d rate 6f 17%. If the amended tgx rate- tad been
used, the deferred 1ax assel would have been £1.6m higher..

Deferred tax

Asset:
2019 £000
Tax lossés carry-forwards 12,098
Provisions v -
Accelératéd tax depreciation: 1,548
13,646

Asset
2018 : -£000
Tax losses.carry=forwards 1,618
Provmone 215,
1 rated tax depreciation -
1,833

Deferred.tax. movément during:the year:
At
At ] January Recognisedin 31 December
2019 income - 2019
_ £000 £ 000 £000
Tex lossés carry-forwards 1,618 10,480 12,098
Provisions 215 15 -
Accéelérated tax depreciation . e 1548 1,548
Net tax assets 1,833 11,813 13,646
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Ardonagh Services Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2019 (continued)

‘9 Income tax (continued)

At

At 1. January Recognised in 31 December

2018 income 2018°

£000 £000 £000

Tax losses carry-forwards - 1,618 1.618
Provisions ’ - 215 215
Acu,h.rated tax deprecmuon - - -
Neét tak assels o - 1,833 1,833

Finance Bill 2016 endcted pmvnsmns to reduce the: main rate. of UK corporation tax to 17% from. | Apnl 2020.

However, in the March 2020 Budget it was announced that. the feduciion in the: UK rate to 17% will now ‘ot occur
and the Corporanon ‘T'ax Rate will be held at 9%. As substamwe enactment is after’ the balance sheet date, deferred
‘{ax. balsmus as at' 31 Decémber 2019. continue 1o be measured at & rate of 17%. If the amended ¥ rate had been,

used, the deferred tax:asset would have been £1.6m h!ghcr

In addition to thc amount disclosed above, the Company has potential deferred w as$éts-at 31 December 2019 of
£7.7m (2018: £18:9m) in relation 16 fixed assets, short term, timing differences and losses totalling £45.1in (2018:.
£111.4m), This deferred tax asset has not been recognised in these accounts as it is not expected that the Company's.

futare proﬁtahlhtv will be sufficient to utilise it
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.Ardonagh Services Limited

Notes to thé Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2019 (continued)

10. intangible assets

Cost or-valuation

Al 1-Jahuary 2019
Additions

Disposals

Trdnsfer between classes
Intercompany ad-hoc:
additions

Inmercompany ad-hoc:
disposals

At 31 December:2019
Amortisation

At | January 2019
Charge for the year
Amortisation climinated on’
disposals

Intercompany ad-hoc
additions

At31 December 2019
Carrying amount

At 31 December 2019

© A3 December2018

‘Intercally
generated
Trademarks, software )
patents and  development  Software under Computer
licenses costs construction, software. Total
£000 £000 £ 000 £000 £ 000
i6 381 11,754 11856 24,037
- - 1,083 68 1,151
- (340) (AR} (3,14) 13,565)
¢ 2,281 (11,266) 8,672 (313)
: 2,201 1,202 1,518 4,92i
- - (2,633) - (2,633)
46 4,523, 29 19.000 23,598
46 381 - 8,140 8,567
- 600 - 4,820 5,420
- {339) - (2,642) (2,981
- 1,965 - 939 2,904
46 2,607 - 11,257 13,910,
- 1,916 29 7,743 9,688
- - 11,754 3,716 15470
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Ardonagh Services Limited.

11 'Property, plant and equipment

) Fixtures Assets Furniture

Leasehold and Motor  undér Computer and office o

improvements fittings vehicles' construction equipfient equipment  Total

£ 000 £ 000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Cost or valuation
At 1 January 2019 124 146 52 13 10,141 137 10,613
Additions 527 - . . 266 17 810
Disposals 372) (29) 52) (39) (462) (14y (959
Transfers between. N
classes: - : - {11a) 427 : 313
Intercompany ad-hoc N i ]
transfers’ , 609 '940 < 131 5363 669 71712
At 31 December 2019 888 1,057 - o - 15,735 809 18,489
Depreciation _
At 1 Janiary2019 23 70 52 - 5.293 101 5,539
Charge for the year 41 92: A 2,673 66 2872
Disposals. (228) 8y (52) (452) a4 (759
Impairment’ - - - - -
Intercompany ad-hoc: L
trankfird , 327 470. - E 4,761 315,869
At 31 December 2019 163 624 . . - - 12,275 464 13,526
Carrying amount
At 3] December 2019 725 433 - - 3,460 345 4,963
At 31 December 2018 101, 76 <. 13 4848 36 5074

12 Leases

Right-of-use assets

The Company applied IF RS 16 from 1 January 2019. The table below provides a‘schedule of the movemeits.in the:
carrying amount of the, right-of-usc assets held on the Statement of Financial Position during the year ended 31
December 2019,
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Ardonagh Services Limited.

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2019 (continued)

12 Leases (confinised)

Property  Non-property Total Lease Liabilities.
' £0060 £000 £000 -£000

At 1 January 2019 7,755 113 7,868 (14,809)

Additions 673 - 673 (1151

Terminations/modifications (6:391) - (6,391) 8,144

Interest expénseé. . = - {1,245)

Ticase payments - - - 3,618

‘Charge for 1hi¢ véar (1:350) o (50y (14403

Cafrying amount.

At.31 December 2019 687 23 ' 710 _(5,439).
2019
£000

Non-currént lease Hability 3490

Cuirrent lease:Tiability; . 1,949
5,439

Tn addition to the abive, the Company recognigéd thé following in the Statemenit of Comprehensive lnicome for the
vear:

2019
£000
Expense relating to variable lease payments not included in the measurément of the lease
Jiability (recognised within other operating eipénses)
Service charges ) 487
Insurance rent 56
Irrecoverdble VAT and other levies expensed (récognised within other operating expénses)- 649
Profit from termination of leases (re‘cognised within operating loss note 5) 2,169)
Othier 42
. (935)

During the-year-énded 31 December 2019, thé total éash Gutflows for-lcases was £3.2m.
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2019 (¢ontinued)

12 Léases (continiied)

Maturity analysis

The igtal futiire valies of undiscountcd,vlease.‘!iabi!iﬁc$ areas follow:

Within ong year
Intwo to five years.

Total undiscounicd value

13 Investments in subsidiary undertakings

Cost or valiiation

At 1 January 2019
Additions

Disposals

At 31 December 2019
Provision for.impairment
At | January 2019
Impairmént

Eliminated on disposals
At:31 December 2019
Carrying amount
At3) Deceinber 2019
At 31 Decémber2018

2019
£000
2,607
6,276:

8,883
2019
£ 000

154,857
3551

2,728,
361,136

240,907
9
2,729

243.645

117,491

113,950

During. the year, the Gompany. acquired Mastercover fnsurance Services Limited, a fellow Groyp subsidiary, for

£3.5m.

Following an.investments review, the-Company adjusted its investiment cost and provigion Tor impairments for

£2.7m: Thig is-in relation to Smartlandlord.co.uk, .2 subsidiary -

the carrying value-of the investments in‘the current and prior years.
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Ardonagh Services Limited

Nofes to the Financial Statements for the Yeai Ended 31 December 2019 (CQntinue@)

13 Investments in subsidiary undertakings (continued)

Impairment review

The Fair Value Less Cost of Séll ("FVLCS") is considered a Lével 3 vatuation in the fair value Hiérarchy, as‘it is not

based. on observable market data. The FVLCS has been derived first by performing a valuation of the wider Group.

and then by allocating that valuation to gach subsidiaries investmént,

The Group’s FVLCS has been calculated by adding the-value derived for the Group's x,q\my to the fair value of its

-outstanding debt, less a reasonablé allowance for costs' 10 sell. The-Group’s equity valuation is based on a weighted
average | valize 0f thé price per share paid i in two recent sharcholdcr transactions. Full detiils. and’ sensitivity analysis
is. provnded in the financial statements of the Group.

The EVLCS of ‘cach invesiment in subsididrie wes derived based on its net asscts and by aflovating. it§ relative
proportion of the Group EVLCS, o thebasis of forecast EBITDA atiributable to thar ¢éntity for 2019;-as derived
from the threc-year plan This most -accuratély reflects the perspective of external market pamcnpants as it
incorporatesthe Company's futurc. inveéstment: plans and stratégic objectives for each investment in subsidiaries.

Following the above year end review, thé Company is not required to impair its-investments.

During the year, the Company adjusted the value -of its invesiments in. Towergate Financial (Group) Limitéd, and
récognised an impairment in its Statement- of Comprehensive Tncome.

Subsidiaries

Details of the subsidiaries as at 31 December 2019 are as follows. Unless otherwise shown, the registered .office is
4th Floor, T Minster Court, Mincing Lané, London, EC3R 7AA:
Proportion of
ownership interest
Couatry of incorporation.and  and voting rights

Name of subsidiary Principal activity prificipal place of business held :
2019 2018

AIUA Heldings Limited (3) In Liquidation England 100% 100%

Broker Network Holdings  Holding company England 100% 100%

Limited (1)

Cullum Capital Véntures  Holding company ‘England 100% 100%

Limited (and subsidiarics)

Dunt:in Pécock (Holdings)  In.Liquidation En_g.land 100% 100%

Limited (3):

Eclipse Park Acquisitions  In Liquidation England 100% l()O%

Limited (3)

JW Group Limited(2) I Liquidation England 100%, 100%
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Notes to the Financial Statements for thé Year Ended 31 Decéiber 2019 (continned),

13 Investmeuts in subsidiary undertakings (continued)
Proportion of
_ ] ownership interest
Country of incorporation and.  and voting rights

‘Name of subsidiary ‘Principal activity principal place of business held

2019 2018
“Towergate Chase Parkinsor  In Liquidation. England 100% 100%
Limited (3)
Towergate Findncial Holding company England ‘85.1% 85.1%

(Group) Limied (and
subsidiaries)

Towergate Risk Solitions.  Holding company- England 100% 100%
Limited (and subSIdmnes)

Towergate Wilsons. Limited 1n Liquidation England 100%. 100%
3)

Mastercover Insurance Insurance broker England 100% 0%
Services Limited @ )

‘The Conipany holds ordinar’;{ ,sharcs'i_g_\‘. all.of the above investments. No other Class of share is held.

(1) Registeréd office:address is Hexagon House Grimbald Crag Close; St James Business Park, Knaresborugh,
North Yorkshire, HGS 8PJ '

(2) Registered. officé address is Saltire'Court, 20 Gastle Terrace, Edinburgh, EH6 7YD

(3) Registered office address i§ 15 Canada Square, London, E14 SGL

{4) Registered office dddress is 2 Oaks Court, Warivick Road, Borehamwood, Hertf‘ordshlre England WwWD6 1GS.

Theré were a-number-ofentities dissolved afier the year end, but befare the financial statements were signed:
« Eclipse Park Acquisitions Limited on 6 February 2020; ’

‘. Towergate Chase Parkinson Limited on.6 February 2020, and

-« Duncan Pocock (Holdings) Limited on'2 April 2020:
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‘Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2019 (_cdntimie’d)

14 Investments il associate

On 1 July 2016 the Company . acquited @ 19.9% share in Brave Investment Holdings Limited (Brav /0), incorporated
and based in the UK. Just pridf to this, Bravo acquired The Broker Neétwork Limited and Countrywidé Insurance
Mariagémeént Limited from the Group,

There is a shareholder agreement in place in fespect of the Company’s holding in Bravo which includes certain
minority protection rights, rights in respect of share transfers and a long-term- option-afrangement over the remaining
shares in Bravo. This option is exercisable by the Company at or above market value-and therefore the associated
derivative has no fair value, The registered ofﬁuc of Bravo Invesiment Holdings-Limitd is Devonshire House, 4th
Floor, 1 Mayfair Place, Londdn, W1J 8AJ.

“The Company's interest in Bravg was disposed of on 19 January 2018. The Company received £30.0m, cash from
Nevada Investment Holdings 2 Limited in respect of the sale of its 19:9% sharcholding in Brava. Nevada
Investnients Holdings 2 Limited was then a related party of- the Group due 1o.its common ‘shareholders. The cash
received plus an additional £1.2im is subject i0 a contingent clawback clause’ tcchanism based on the equity valuc at
1 January 2020.

Following a | July 2019 aménded agreement, the settlement daie is a date ‘between 19. January 2020 and 30
September 2020, and setlement may be in cash or equity of the Company. A contingent proceeds liability of £20.0m
in relation 1o this clawback.mechanism is recognised by the-Company at 31 Decembei 2019,

At the time of disposal, the £30:0m cash received was recogniséd and £20.0m was recorded as a contingent procecds
hablhty, resulting in a gain on dispdsal of associatg of £4.6m. At 31 March 2018, the fair value of the contingent
pmceeds liability was reassesséd based on the then current equity value of Bravo, resuhmg in the recognition of a
£3.3m increasé 10 the gain on disposal. At 30 Junc 2019, the fair value ot the deferred praxeeds liability was
réassessed again, resulting in the récognition of a gain of £0.7m on disposal. The contingent proceeds liability hias
since remained unchanged:

‘When the Company owned 19.9%.0f Bravo there was an-agieerrient ifi place in respect.ot the equity of Bravo which
.included certain minority protection rights, rights in respect of share transfers and a long-iérm opticn arfangement
‘over the remaining sharés in Bravo, This dption was ‘exercisable by the Company at of above market value and
theretore the associated derivative had no fair value, This agreement was retained with minor amendiments afier the
disposal of the associate.
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Notes to the Financial Statemenits for the Year Ended 31 December 2019 (¢ontinued)

15 “Trade and other receivables

2019 2018

£000 £000
Receivables froni othér Group companies 870,676 921,701
Loans o othér Group comipaiies 315,312 315,112
Accrued income 283 3
Prepayments 3,455 9,421
‘Other receivables 49,653 29431
Total current trade and otlier receivables _1,239179 1,375,668

Duiing the vear, the: Company, made. an additional provision 6f £0.2m against.receivable from Jfelated parties,
bringing the total provision to £41.0m (2018:'£40.7m) at the year end, against the receivables from related partics.
For mare details on rélated party balances please sée.npte;23.

The direciors believe thit the remaining intercompany receivibiles are recoverable. The balunces are unsecred,
interest frce and repayable on demand.

There dre no balances included +in trade and -other réceivables that are falling due aftér more than .on¢ year which:
require separate disclosure.

16 Casb and cash equivalents

2019 2018
£000 £000
Cish at bank ) 9,378 . 5,819

Cash at bank incliadées £0.2m (2018:£0.6m) which are considered resiricted and not available 1o pay the general
debts ofthe Company.

17 Loans.and borrowings

2019 2018
£000 £000

Currént loans and borrowings
Interest péyable on loan notes: 51,323 40,526
Subordinated loans 122,000, 122,000
173323 162,526
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2019 (continued)

17 Loans and borrowings (continued)

On2 April’ 2015 the Conpany emered into a subordinated loan agréément with"TiG Finco Ple, an immediate parent
of thé. Campany. The loan bears-interest at-a fixed rate 6 8. 85% per-annum and thé. principal ambunt (mcludmg any.
interest ac.crued) is-repayable on demand,

18. Trade and:other pnyables

Non-citrrent fiabitities

2019 2018
.y £000 -£ 000
Contingent: consideration- - - 16,750
Othr payables e 3381 T
3381 . 16,750

Current ligbilities
2019 2018
£000 £000
Accrued expenses 9,850 18,396
Amounts due to°other group ¢ompanics 570,471 580,604
Social secifity and other'taxes 4,764 4,736.
Outstanding defined coritribution pension costs, 970 881
Othe_r-payables 7,430 5,103
Cantingent consideration 16,100 310
Deferred income o E 42
609,585 .. 610,062

Amounts due to other Group c,ompames includes balances to related parties” which details ¢an be found in note 23,
Alllof the balances aré unséoured, interest free and payable on demand;

Contingent consideration includes amounts payable to fel:;‘l_l_t__fd parties, for more détails;see'note. 23,

19 Defined contribution pension'scheme.

Thé Company -operates a .defined contribition pension scheme., Thé tol'xl cost Tharged. to the Siatement of
Comprehensive Income of £0.4m (20!8 £0.3m) represents corittibutions pavahle to these schemes by the Company
at rates specified in the rules of the plans.

As at 31 December 2019, contributiéns of £1.0m (2018: £0.8m) due.in regpectof the current reporting Yedr had not
been paid over-to.the schemes anid are’included in Trade and-othicr payables,
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2019 (continued)

20 Share capital

Allottéd, called up and Fully paid shares,

2019 2018

No. 000 £000 Ne. 600 £000

Ordinary A 6f£0,01 each _ 33,178,460,269 331,785  33.178.460,269 331:785
Deferred B of £1.407,307,331 cach ) 1407307 b 1,407,307
" 733,178,460, 1,739,002 33,178,460 1,739,092

‘The A ordinary shares hidve attachied to them full.voting, dividend and.capital (mcludmg on-winding up) nghts They
do_not contér'any righils of redempuon

Company in am amount af 0. ()OOOO}% of th riominal value of the B defc.rred share per annum on a return of capnal
(including winding .up). The. hoider of the' B Deferred shité has the right to receive £0.01 per B Deferred share
(should more be issued) for each £0.10 received by a folder. of A Ordinary shares per A Ordinary-share, provided
that €ach-holder of an A Otdinary sharé receives the full nominal amount paid up.on each A Ordinary : share held and
a further -£1,000,000 per'A Ordmary share held. The B Deférréd share does not have voting rights or thie nght to
receivé notice ‘f general meeungs ‘of the company. attached to it, the B Deférred ‘share does not confer any rights-of
rfedemption.
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Notés-to the Financial Statements for thé Y_‘eax; Ended 31 December 2019 (g@hﬁhued)‘

21 Provisions

o Onerous Other: o
E&O leasé  Dilapidations provisions Total
3 £000 £ 000 -£000 £000  £000
At 1 Janusry 2019 4,524 315 105 718 5,662
IFRS 16 Transition adjustment = (839) : - (839)
internally transferred in/(out) {4,524) ‘800 1,016 - (2.708)
Additional provisions made in.the :
period (in¢, increase {o existing
provisions) - 380 119 499:
Unused amounts revérsed during the.
period - - (8913. - (891)
Amounts used (i.¢ incurred and
chargéd-against the provision)-during
the period - (219) - (716) (935)
Unwind of Discount - 17 R e 30
At-3) December 2009 = 74 623 121 Big
Non-curren liabilities ‘ - 13 . 124 . 137
Current liabilities - 61 499 121 681

Onérous 'levases» provides for cosis incurréd 'on vacant properties, éxcluding rent.costs (which. are subject to lease
acgcounting).

Ermors.and omissions (E & O) provision < In.the normal coiirsé of business the Group may fé(;eii'e'¢lai}ns in respect
of érrors anid omissions. A provision hds been made in respect of outstanding effors ard omissions claims.

Dilapidations provision - provides for the estimatéd amounts payable for dilapidatiofson cach property at the end of*
thé Jcése term.

Other provisions relate to obligations:from Yesteucturing the finance function.

The findnce chargé relating to unwinding of the discount has: been charged to the Statément M"Comprchensivé
Income. ' '
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Ardonagh Services Limited.

Notes to the Financial .Staiemgnts for the Year Ended 31 December 2019 (continued)

22 Commitments

Guarantees
On 25 May 2017, Ardonagh Midco -3 ple, a newly incorporated irtermedidte holding company, entered into ‘a
£90.0m ‘super senior Revolving Credit Facilities ("RCF™),

On 20 fune 2017, Ardonagh Midco 3 ple issued £400.0m of 8:375% Senior Secured Notes and USDS520.0m of
8.625% Senior Secured Notes, On 22 June 2017, the £425. Om Senior Secured Notes-and £75.0m foating rate super
Senior Secured Notes issued by Ardonsgh Finco plc.in April 2015 were redeemed.

‘On 20 December 2017, Ardonagh Midco 3 plc igsued an additional £55.0m of 8.375% Senior Securcd Notes which
are fungible Wwith the existing GBP Senior Secured Notes issued on 20 June 2017. On the same date the
‘commitments under the RCF were in¢reased 10 £105.0m.

On: 18 June 2018, Ardonagh Midco 3 ple issucd ‘ah additional £98.3m of 8:375% Senior Secured Notés which are
‘fungible with the existing GBP Senior Secured Notes issued on 20 June 2017.and 20 Decémber 2017.

On 26 September 2018, the Group’s RCF was amended. and resiafed 1o includ€ an additiohal £50. Om facility made:
available solcly 10 provide-a Letter-of Credit ancillary Tacility for the. same. amount. On 5 October 2018, a Jetter of
credit of £50.0m was issued for the benefit of specified entities within the Group, solely to provide credit support.in
respect of potential redress liabilities relating to the safe of certain enhanced transfér value products (ETV). With
effect from | December 2019, the contractual limitation on ithe amount that may be utilised of the Group’s RCT was
removcd As at 31 December- 2019, the RCF facility capacity was £120m and undrawn. At the date-of this report, the
Group’s RCF committed facility had been, uxtended to £170m, of which £70m.'was drawn. Pémiissible RCF
drawings.are limited by the Group®s credit facility basket.

'O 15 November 2018 USD235m additional 8.625% Séniof Secured Noles were issued,

The obligations 6f Ardonagh Midco 3 plc under the Notes, RCF, and the subsequenily issued 8.375% and 8.625%
notes, are guaranteed and secured by Ardonagh Midco 2 plc; the. immediate parent company of Ardonagh Midco 3
plc. and all its matcrial and ceitgin other subsidiaries. These subsidiarics are listed below:

Ardonagh Midco 3 plc (RCF Guarantor only) Lunar 101 Limited

Ardonagh Finco Plc

Nevada Investment Holdings 5 Lifiied
Nevada Investment Holdings 6 Limited
Nevada Invesiment Holdings 7-Limited
Ardonagh Midco 2 plc

Nevada [nvestments. Holdings Limited
PEIH Limited

‘Nevada InvestorCo Limited

Morgan Law Limited.

Paymentshield Group Holdings Lirmited
Paymentshicld Holdings Limited
Payménishield Limited

Payméntshield Services Limited
Ardonagh Services Limited

Towergate Risk Solutions Limited
Towergate Underwriting Group Limited
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22 Commiitoients (continted)
Nevada Investments TopCo Liniited,
‘Price Forbes Holdings Limited

Pricé Forbes & Parters Limited
Nevada Invéstments 1 Limited
‘Nevada Inivéstments 2 Limited

Nevada [nvestments: 3 Limited

“Nevada Investments 4Limited

Nevada Investments 5 Limited

Nevada Invéstments 6 Limited

Nevida Investments 7 Limited

Arista Insuranee Limited

Bishopsgate Insurance Brokers Limited
Broker Network Holdings Limited.
CCV Risk Solutions Limited

Cuilfum Capital Ventures Limited

Four Ciunties [nsurance Brokers Limited
Geo Specialty Group Holdings Limited
Geo Underwriting Services. Limited.

URIS‘Grqqp Limited,

URIS:Central Administration Limited

Millennium Insurance Brokérs Limited
URIS Topéo Limited

Chast Temipleton Group Limited
Chise Teriplitan Holdings Limited
Chase Témpléion Limited

Ardonagh Advisory Holdings Limited
Ardonagh Specialty Holdings Limited’
Swinton Group Limited

Swinton (Holdings) Limited

Swiiitors Properties Limited
Allanté Iivestment Holdings Limited

Atlafa. {fwestment Holdings A Limited
Atlanta 1 Ifsurance Services Limited
Carole Nash Insuraiice Consultants Limited
KDB Medicals Limited

Health and Protection Soluiions Limited

These guarantees have been treated ndér TFRS 4 in line with'the accounting policy- déscribed.in note 2,
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23 Related party transactions

Business was conducied, on dan arm's length basis, within The.Ardonagh Group Limited group of companies: The
Company has taken the exemption under 'ERS. 101 not to disclose transactions with fellow wholly owned

subsidiaries or key management pe_rsqnn_e{

During the year the Company entered into tidnsactios, in the ordinary course of business, wnh ' number of related
parties. The Company has provided services and incurred expenses on behalt of the related parties and fecharged
costs to them. The table below shows the transactions-und balances with related parties, enfitics that form part of the

‘Group.but are not-wholly owned by The Ardonagh Group Limited,

2019 2019 2019
(Dise to)
Ireceivable
Received from at year
Paid to from ‘end’
£000 £ 000 £000
Towergate Findncial (Londén)
Limited* . - 365
Towergate Financial (West) .
Limited 2 - {1,956)
‘Towergate. Financial (North) o
Limited - - (2,156)
Towergate Financial (Scotland)
Limited ' ' - - (8,889)
Towergaié Financial (Fast)
Intermediate Limited * - . 2,959
Towergate Findsicial (Easty
Limited 674 s (5,426)
“Towergate Fifanitcial (West) '
Holdings Limited * - 4,124
Towergate Financial (Scotland) A
Holdings Limited * - - 2,617
Towirgate Financial {East) o
Holdings Limited * ] - - 6,731
Towergate Financial (North)
Holdings Limited * - - 5,997
Towcrgau, Firancial (Group)
Limited * 171 E 18,146
Oyster Risk Solutions Limited 2,556 E 19,190
-Ovster Praperty Inisurance
.Speuahsts Limited. - - 1,482
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23 Related party traasactions (continued)

*in 2019, the Company madé a provmon of £0.2m, totalling £41.0m, against intercomipany debt froin the
Towergate Financial. Group companies as.discloséd in note 5.

The Compiny has béen providing services, incufred expénsés on behalf ‘of the reldted pariiés and recharged costs
out 1o thém. Thesc-business transactions refated party balances can been The rélated party balances arose on services
provided by the Company , and

Bravo

At 31 December 2017, the Compahy owned. 19.9% of. the voiing shares in Bravo. Investment Holdings Limited
{(Bravo) which had acquired The Broker Network leucd (Broker Network) and Coiiritrywide | Insurance
Mariagement Limited {Countrywidc), fellow group companics, in 2016,

In Jamiary 2018, the Company received £30.0m cash from Nevada Investment” Holdings 2 Limited in respect. of the
sale of its 19.9% sharcholding in Bravo. The cash received plus. an additional £1. 2m is subject to @ contingent
clawback clause depeident upon the future. performance of'the business.

Follo\wng a 1 July 2019 amendéd agreement, the settlement date for the coniingent clawback is a date.between 19,
Japuary 2020 and 30 September 2020, and setilemenit miay be.in cash or equity of the Company. A deferred proceeds
liability of £16.1m (2018: £16.75m) in relduon {0 this clawback mechanism is recognised by the Company at 3J.
December 2019 in note 18.

During 2019 the Company supplied services of £170,788 (2018: £182, A77) 1o Bravo. A balance of £64,315 (7018
£374,092) was outstanding at.31 December 2019,

24 Parent and dltimate parerit undertakiag.

The Group’s mdjority shareholder and ultimate. comrollmg party’at 31 December 2019 is HPS Investment. Partiers.
L.LC. The parent company of the largest .group that préparcs group. financial ‘statements at 31 December 2019 that
consoalidaté the Company is The Ardonagh Group Limited (incorporated in Jersey, registered office. address-3rd
Fioor, 44: Esplanadé, St Heliet; Jersey JE4.9WG). The parént Comipany of the. smallest group that prepares group:
financial siatements at 31 December 2019 that conisolidate the Company is Ardonagh Midco 3 plc (incorporated in
:Great Britain, registered office address 1 Minster Court; Mincing Laneé, London, EC3R 7TAA).

Financial Statements: for The Ardondgh Group Limited and Ardonagh Midco 3 plc are;available on request from:
1 Minster Court’
‘Mincing Lane

.London
EC3R 7AA
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